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NOTICE
NOTICE is hereby given that 15th Annual General Meeting of the Members of S.A.L. STEEL LIMITED will be held on Saturday,
29th September 2018 at 10:00 A.M. at SAL Institute & Engineering Research, Opp. Science City, Ahmedabad - 380 060 to
transact the following business:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2018, Statement of Profit & Loss for year
ended on that date and the Reports of Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Anil Kumar Pandya (DIN 02453919), who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers himself for reappointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. To consider and if thought fit , to pass, with or without modification(s), following resolution as Special Resolut ion:

" RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 23 (4) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [hereinafter as "SEBI(LODR)"] , as amended from time to
time, consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded for all material related party contracts or arrangements entered
and to be entered into financial year 2018-19 between the Company and Shah Alloys Limited for sale of power and
materials and purchase of material & services from Shah Alloys Ltd. at a prevailing market price in ordinary course of
business.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded for ratification of related party transactions
between the Company and Shah Alloys Limited entered into during the period 2017-18.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (the "Board") and/ or any Committee constituted by the Board be and
is hereby authorized to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise with regard to giving effect to the above
resolution and to do all acts, deeds, things as may be deemed necessary, proper and desirable."

4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), following resolution as an Ordinary Resolut ion:

" RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof, for the time being in force), M/ s. Ashish Bhavsar & Associates, Cost Accountants appointed by the Board on
the recommendation of the Audit Committee of the Company to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company
for the financial year ending March 31, 2019 be paid the remuneration of ` 70,000/ - per annum plus out of pocket
expenses, if any, incurred during the course of audit."

By order of  the Board of  Directors
Sd/ -

Date: 30th May 2018 Nirajkumar Jain
Place: Santej Company Secretary & Compliance Of f icer

Registered Of f ice:
5/ 1 Shreeji House,
B/ h M.J. Library,
Ashram Road,Ahmedabad-380 006
CIN: L29199GJ2003PLC043148

NOTES
1. A member entit led to attend and vote is entit led to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of him/ her self and

proxy need not be a member. The proxies to be effective should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company
not later than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten
percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of
the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall
not act as a proxy for any other shareholder.
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2. Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,
2014 as amended and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, the
Company is pleased to provide the facility of remote e-voting to all members as per the applicable Regulations relating
to e-vot ing. The complete inst ruct ion on e-vot ing faci li ty provided by the Company is annexed to this Not ice,
explaining the process of e-voting with necessary user id and password along with procedure for such e-voting. Such
remote e-voting facility is in addit ion to voting that may take place at the Meeting venue on 29th September 2018.

3. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives are requested to send a duly certified copy of
the Board Resolution authorizing their representative/ s to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting.

4. Pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, details of
directors seeking appointment /  reappointment at the Annual General Meeting is given in detail, as annexed hereto.

5. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the Special Business to be
transacted at the meeting, is annexed hereto.

6. Shareholders are requested to bring their copy of Annual Report to the meeting.

7. Members/ Proxies should fill Attendance Slip for attending the meeting.
8. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Friday, 14th September 2018

to Monday, 1st October 2018 (both days inclusive).

9. Members seeking any information or clarification on Accounts are requested to send written queries to the Company, at
least one week before the date of the meeting. Replies will be provided in respect of such written queries received only
at the meeting.

10. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Statement will remain open and available for
inspection by the members at the administrative office of the Company on all working days, except Saturdays, during
business hours up to the date of the Meeting.

11. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN)
by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit
their PAN to their Depository Part icipants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding
shares in physical form can submit their PAN to the Company or its Share registrars and Transfer Agents.

12. Members who have not registered their email IDs so far with their depository participants, are requested to register
their email IDs for receiving all the Communications including Annual Report, Notices etc. in electronic mode.

13. Pursuant to Section 101 and Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Companies (Management and
Administration Rules), 2014, and Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations,
2015, companies can serve Annual Reports and other communications through electronic mode to those members who
have registered their e-mail address either with the Company or with the Depository.

14. The Notice of the Annual General Meeting and Annual Report of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2018 is
uploaded on the Company's website www.salsteel.co.in.

15. Electronic copy of the Annual Report for 2017-18 is being sent to all the members whose email IDs are registered with
the Company /  Depository Participants(s) for communication purposes unless any member has requested for a physical
copy of the same. For members who have not registered their email address, a physical copy of the Annual Report for
2017-18 is being sent in the permitted mode.

The inst ruct ions for members for vot ing elect ronical ly are as under:-
SECTION A: E-VOTING PROCESS:
1. To use https:/ / evoting.karvy.com URL for e-voting:

2. Enter the login credentials i.e., user id and password mentioned. Your Folio No/ DP ID Client ID will be your user ID.
3. After entering the details appropriately, click on LOGIN.
4. I f you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evoting.karvy.com and voted on an earlier voting

of any Company, then your existing password is to be used.
5. I f you are a first t ime user, use below mentioned User ID and Password.

Once, you will reach the Password change menu wherein you are required to mandatorily change your password. The new
password shall comprise of minimum 8 characters with at least one upper case (A-Z), one lower case (a-z), one numeric
value (0-9) and a special character. The system will prompt you to change your password and update any contact details
like mobile, email etc. on first login. You may also enter the secret question and answer of your choice to retrieve your
password in case you forget it.
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Kindly note that it is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to
keep your password confidential.

6. You need to login again with the new credentials.

7. On successful login, the system will prompt you to select the EVENT i.e., S.A.L. Steel Ltd.

8. On the voting page, the number of shares as held by the shareholder as on the Cut-off Date will appear. I f you desire to
cast all the votes assenting/ dissenting to the Resolution then enter all shares and click "FOR" /  "AGAINST" as the case
may be. You are not required to cast all your votes in the same manner. You may also choose the option "ABSTAIN" in
case you wish to abstain from voting.

9. Shareholders holding multiple folios /  demat account shall choose the voting process separately for each folios /  demat
account.

10. On the voting page, you will see Resolution description and against the same the option 'YES/ NO' for voting.

Select the relevant option as desired YES or NO and click on submit.

11. Click on the Resolution File Link if you wish to view the Notice.

12. Once you 'CONFIRM' your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

Please note that once you have cast  your vote, you cannot modify or vote on poll at  the t ime of Annual General
Meeting. However, you can attend the meeting and participate in the discussions, if any.

SECTION B- COMMENCEMENT OF E-VOTING PERIOD AND OTHER INSTRUCTIONS
1. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies (Management

and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules,
2015 read with Regulation 44 of SEBI (LODR), Regulations 2015, the Company is pleased to provide members facility
to exercise their right to vote at the 15th Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be
transacted through e-Voting Services provided by Karvy Computershare Private Ltd.

2. The vot ing period begins on 26.09.2018 at  10:00 a.m. and ends on 28.09.2018 at 05:00 P.M. During this period
shareholders' of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date
of (record date) of 22.09.2018 may cast their vote electronically. The e-vot ing module shall be disabled by Karvy
Computershare Private Limited for vot ing thereafter. Once the vote on a resolut ion is cast by the shareholder, the
shareholder shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

3. The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and the members attending the meeting
who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting through ballot paper.

4. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but shall not be
entit led to cast their vote again.
In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions ("FAQs") and
e-vot i ng manual  avai lable at  www.evot ingindia.co. in under help sect ion or wri t e an emai l  t o
www.karvycomputershare.com OR write an e-mail to shyam.kumar@karvy.com

5. The vot ing rights of shareholders shall be in proport ion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the
Company.

6. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become member of the Company after dispatch of the notice and
holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 22.09.2018, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at
www.karvycomputershare.com .

7. CS Kamlesh M Shah, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. ACS 8356, CP No: 2072) (Address: 801-A, 8th Floor,
Mahalaya Complex, Opp. Hotel President, B/ H. Fairdeal House, Swast ik Cross Roads, Off. C. G. Road, Navrangpura,
Ahmedabad: 380009) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-Voting process.

8. The Scrutinizer shall, within a period not exceeding three (3) working days from the conclusion of the e-voting period,
unblock the votes in the presence of at least two (2) witnesses not in the employment of the Company and make a
Scrutinizer's Report of the votes cast in favour or against, if any and submit forth with to the Chairman of the Company.

9. The Results shall be declared on the date of AGM of the Company. The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer's
Report shall be placed on the Company's website www.salsteel.co.in within two days of the passing of the resolutions
at the AGM of the Company and communicated to the BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited, where
the shares of the Company are listed.

10. The resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the Annual General Meeting, subject to receipt of sufficient
votes.

mailto:shyam.kumar@karvy.com
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11. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/ JPG
Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/  Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory (ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer through e-mail ksshah@yahoo.com.

12. You can also update your mobile number and e-mail ID in the user profi le details of the folio which may be used for
sending communication(s) regarding Karvy e-Voting system in future. The same may be used in case the Member forgets
the password and the same needs to be reset.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for shareholders and e-voting User Manual
for shareholders available at the download section of https:/ / evoting.karvy.com or contact Shri N Shyamkumar  of Karvy
Computershare Pvt. Ltd at 040- 44655000 or at 1800 345 4001 (toll free).

Note: For detailed instructions for e-voting, please visit website of Karvy Computershare Private Limited.

By order of  the Board of  Directors
Sd/ -

Date: 30th May 2018 Nirajkumar Jain
Place: Santej Company Secretary & Compliance Of f icer

Registered Of f ice:
5/ 1 Shreeji House,
B/ h M.J. Library,
Ashram Road,Ahmedabad-380 006
CIN: L29199GJ2003PLC043148

mailto:ksshah@yahoo.com.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND THE RULES
FRAMED THEREUNDER

Item No. 3:
The Securities and Exchange Board of India, vide its Circular No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2015-16/013 dated 2nd September, 2015
(the "said circular"), introduced the regulations called the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [herein after "SEBI (LODR)"]. As per regulation 23 (4) of the SEBI (LODR), all material
related party transactions shall require approval of the shareholders through resolution in the General Meeting. The related party
transactions set out below are all contractual obligations entered / to be entered into by the Company in its ordinary course of
business and are arms' length transactions for financial year 2018-19:

For f inancial year 2018-19
Name of the related par ty Shah Alloys Limited
Relation with the Company Promoter Company
Purpose of related par ty transaction Sale of Power & Material

Purchase of Material & Service
Amount Approx.
(`  in Cr.) 300.00

100.00
As approved by the members in the Annual General Meeting held on 30.09.2017, to enter into related party transactions for the
financial year 2017-18 for purchase of material & services to the extent of ` 10 Crores. However, Company executed transactions
amounting to ` 60.00 Crores (approx.). In compliance of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, Members
approval is sought for ratification of excess transactions.
Purpose of the aforementioned mater ial related par ty transactions
Company was promoted by Shah Alloys Limited in 2003 and is having 35.61% equity holding in the Company. The Project is
backward integration project since finished product of the Company is raw material for the Shah Alloys Limited. Further, Company
has installed group captive power plant 40 MW. Excess power is wheeled to Shah Alloys Limited for its power requirement. On
account of above, Shah Alloys is purchasing finished product of Company and also power generated by group captive power
plant. Company purchases various materials from Shah Alloys Limited for maintenance of its plant and other purposes. Transactions
made with Shah Alloys Limited are at Arms' length basis. The information is given pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 23 of
SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 since the value of transactions with SAL Steel Ltd. exceeds 10% of the total turnover of the
Company.
None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financially or
otherwise, in the resolution except Shri Rajendra V. Shah.
Item No.4:
The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment and remuneration of the Cost Auditors
to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending 31st March, 2019 at the remuneration of `
70,000/- per annum plus out of pocket expenses, if any, incurred during the course of audit. In accordance with the provisions
of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has
to be ratif ied by the shareholders of the Company. Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary
Resolution as set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice.
None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives is, in any way, concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise, in the resolution. The Board commends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice for
approval by the shareholders.

By order of  the Board of  Directors
Sd/ -

Date: 30th May 2018 Nirajkumar Jain
Place: Santej Company Secretary & Compliance Of f icer

Registered Of f ice:
5/ 1 Shreeji House,
B/ h M.J. Library,
Ashram Road,Ahmedabad-380 006
CIN: L29199GJ2003PLC043148
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Detai ls of the directors seeking re-appointment  in the
15th Annual General Meeting of the Company

[ Pursuant  to regulat ion 36 (3)  of  the SEBI (LODR) Regulat ions, 2015]

Name of Director 
 

ANIL PANDYA 
 DIN 

 
02453919 

Date of Birth 
 

02.05.1955 
Date of Appointment 
 

25.10.2008 
Relat ionship with other Directors Inter se None 

Prof i le & Expert ise in Specif ic funct ional Areas 40 years of vast experience & skills in handling HR & 
Administrative positions in various big organizations 
during the carrier. 

Quali f icat ion 
 

M.Sc., LL.B., PGDBM 
No. of Equity Shares held in the Company NIL 

List of other Companies in which Directorships 
are held 

NIL 

 
List of committees of Board of Directors (across 
all other Companies)  in which Chairmanship/  
Membership is held 

NIL 
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ADDENDUM TO THE NOTICE OF THE 15TH AGM OF S.A.L. STEEL LIMITED
Registered Of f ice:

5/1 Shreeji House, B/h M.J. Library, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad-380 006

CIN: L29199GJ2003PLC043148
Following is an additional item of agenda to the Notice convening 15th Annual General Meeting of the Company which will be taken
up for discussion and voting after all the items of the agenda of the notice of AGM dated 30.05.2018 is considered. This item will
also appear in the list of various resolutions to be passed through e-voting portal www.karvycomputershare.com
Pursuant to newly inserted Sub-Regulations 1A in Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disc losure
Requirements)(Amendment Regulations) which will be effective from 1st April, 2019, Notice is hereby given, proposing to
continuing the directorship of non executive Directors who has attained the age of Seventy five years in the ensuing 15th Annual
General Meeting of the Company, scheduled to be held on Saturday 29th September, 2018.
Your Directors recommend the following resolution for continuing the Non executive Directors as Independent Director for your
approval in the Annual General Meeting, as part of Special Business, as set forth below:
5 . TO CONTINUE DIRECTORSHIP OF SHRI JETHAL AL M. SHAH (DIN 01412666), NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AS AN

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 and
pursuant to newly inserted sub regulations 1A in Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Amendment Regulations) 2018 which will be effective from 1st April, 2019 including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force, approval of members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for continuation of
the directorship of Shri Jethalal M Shah, (DIN: 01412666),  as Independent Director who has attended the age of Seventy Five
years."
6 . TO CONTINUE DIRECTORSHIP OF SHRI SHRIKANT JHAVERI (DIN 02833725), NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AS AN

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
To consider and, if thought f it, to pass with or without modif ication(s) the following resolution as  an Ordinar y
Resolution:
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 and
pursuant to newly inserted sub regulations 1A in Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Amendment Regulations) 2018 which will be effective from 1st April, 2019 including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force, approval of members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for continuation of
the directorship of Shri Shrikant Jhaveri, (DIN: 02833725),  as Independent Director who has attended the age of Seventy Five
years."
7. TO CONTINUE DIRECTORSHIP OF SHRI AMBAL AL C. PATEL (DIN 00037870), NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AS AN

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
To consider and, if thought f it, to pass with or without modif ication(s) the following resolution as  an Ordinar y
Resolution:
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 and
pursuant to newly inserted sub regulations 1A in Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Amendment Regulations) 2018 which will be effective from 1st April, 2019 including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force, approval of members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for continuation of
the directorship of Shri Ambalal C. Patel (DIN: 00037870) as Independent Director of the Company on attaining the age of seventy
five years on 1st April, 2019."

EXPL ANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND THE RULES FRAMED
THEREUNDER FOR THE ITEM NOS. 5 TO 7

The Members of the Company at the 11th Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 24th September 2014 inter alia appointed Shri
Jethalal M. Shah, Shri Shrikant Jhaveri and Shri Ambalal C. Patel as Independent Directors of the Company for a period of five
consecutive years with effect from 24th September 2014.
Based on the Report of the Committee on Corporate Governance chaired by Shri Uday Kotak, the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (SEBI) amended the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as
"Listing Regulations"). According to the new provisions, a person who has attained the age of seventy five years can continue
directorship in a listed company as a non executive director only after the concerned listed company has taken the approval of its
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shareholders by way of a special resolution. The said provision comes into effect from April 1, 2019.
Since Shri Jethalal M. Shah, Shri Shrikant Jhaveri and Shri Ambalal C. Patel, Independent Directors of the Company have attained
seventy five years of age, their directorship can continue from April 1, 2019 only if the Company has obtained the approval of its
Members by way of a special resolution on or before March 31, 2019.
Shri Shah has vast experience of more than 55 years.  Shri Shah had been working with Sarabhai Group of Industries on senior
management level. Shri Shah has good business understanding and experience; he has contributed a lot with his acumen and
decision making.
Shri Jhaveri has done his M.S. in Electrical from USA. Shri Jhaveri has more than 40 years of experience. Shri Jhaveri had served
various Government Organizations during his carrier at senior level positions. Presently, Shri Jhaveri is also holding various senior
level positions in various Government committee and NGO's.
Mr. Ambalal C. Patel, is a B Sc and B E (Metallurgy). He has gained more than 36 years of experience in project evaluation, project
finance and technical appraisal of various undertakings, while working with Gujarat Industrial & Investment Corporation Limited
(GIIC). He had retired as a Deputy General Manager from GIIC in April 2004 and joined the Board of the Company in August 2004.
His guidance and advice in the area of finance and company law matters is very helpful to the Company.
In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, Shri J M Shah, Shri Shrikant Jhaveri and Shri A C Patel are person of high
repute, integrity and have rich and varied experience and hence their directorship is recommended to be continued up to the
expiry of their present term as Independent Directors i.e. upto conclusion of 16th Annual General Meeting to be held in calendar
year 2019 by passing special resolutions as set out at Item Nos. 5 to 7 of this Notice.
None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives is concerned or interested in the resolution.

By order of  the Board of  Directors
Sd/ -

Date: 13th August 2018 Nirajkumar Jain
Place: Santej Company Secretary & Compliance Of f icer

Registered Of f ice:
5/ 1 Shreeji House,
B/ h M.J. Library,
Ashram Road,Ahmedabad-380 006
CIN: L29199GJ2003PLC043148
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ADDENDUM TO THE NOTICE OF THE 15TH AGM OF S.A.L. STEEL LIMITED

Name of Director Shri  Jethalal M Shah Shri Shrikant Jhaveri  Shri  Ambalal C. Patel 
DIN 
 

01412666 02833725 00037870 

Age 
 

86 years 75 years 74 years 

Date of Appointment 05/ 08/ 2004 24/ 09/ 2011 05/ 08/ 2004 

Relat ionship with other 
Directors Inter se 

- - - 

Quali f icat ion B. Com. M.S. (Electrical), USA  B.E (Metallurgy), B.Sc 

No. of Equity Shares held 
in the Company 

NIL NIL 89000 

List of other Companies 
in which Directorships 
are held 

NIL Jindal Worldwide 
Limited 

1. Jindal Hotel Ltd. 
2. Ajmera Realty & Infra 

India Ltd.  
3. Nandan Denim Ltd.  
4. Cil Nova Petrochemicals 

Ltd.; 
5. Sumeru Industries  Ltd. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Dear Members,

Your Directors pleased to present the 15th Annual Report of your company on the operations and performance along with the Audited
Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March 2018.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

     ` In Lacs

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Total Revenues 51136.81 39939.90

Total Expenditure 51119.05 39582.61

Profit before interest depreciation, extraordinary item and tax 792.75 1121.51

Depreciation and Interest 775.00 764.23

Profit /  (Loss) before exceptional, extraordinary item and tax 17.75 357.28

Exceptional & Extraordinary item 6378.26 Nil

Profit /  (Loss) before tax 6396.02 357.29

Tax Expense /  Deferred tax 2156.95 269.60

Net Profit /  (Loss) for the year 4239.07 87.68

Total Comprehensive income 15.96 4.91

Profit /  (Loss) Brought forward from last year -16060.74 -16148.43

Balance Carried forward -11821.68 -16060.74

STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS /  PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

During the year under review Total Revenue from operation has been increased from ` 39,939.90 lacs to ` 51,136.81 lacs as compared
to previous year's turnover. Company has registered a net profit  of ` 4,239.07 lacs in comparison of profi t  of ` 87.69 lacs during
previous year.

During the year under review, one of the Operational Creditor of the Company had filed an application under Sect ion 9 of Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 against the Company before Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench for initiation of the
Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process. Hon'ble NCLT Ahmedabad vide order dated 06.09.2017 admitted the application and appointed
Insolvency Professional. Further on account of settlement with the creditors, company approached the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India
for withdrawal of matter before Hon'ble NCLT pursuant of powers of the Court under Articles 142 of the Constitution. Hon'ble Supreme
Court vide its order dated 10.01.2018 had allowed the pet i t ion and set aside the order dated 06.09.2017passed by Hon'ble NCLT,
Ahmedabad.

DIVIDEND

Due to high accumulated loss, your Directors have not recommended dividend for the financial year 2017-18.

BUSINESS ACTIVITY

The company is engaged in manufacture of sponge iron, ferro alloys and power. Company is generating power on account of waste heat
recovery system result ing economic price. Company is having i ts power plant  of 40 MW. Power generated is used for capt ive
consumption. There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The company does not have holding or subsidiary companies during the year and no other company has become holding /  subsidiary/
joint venture /  associate. The Company is an Associate Company of M/ s Shah Alloys Limited as it is holding more than 20% of the Equity
Share Capital in the Company as a Promoter Company.

DEPOSIT

The Company has not accepted any public deposit during the year under review and no amount against the same was outstanding at
the end of the year.

DETAILS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS U/ S 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

During the year under review the Company has not made any inter corporate loans, investments, given any corporate guarantee to any
other body corporate, subsidiary, associate or any other company.

REGULATORY STATEMENT

In conformity with provision of regulation 34(2)(c) & 53(b) of SEBI (LODR), Regulations 2015, the Cash Flow Statement for the year
ended 31.03.2018 is annexed hereto. The equity shares of the Company are listed on the BSE Ltd. and the National Stock Exchange of
India Ltd. (NSE).
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The Company has paid listing fees for the year 2018-19 to above stock exchanges.

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OR KMPs APPOINTMENT OR RESIGNATION

During the year under review there is no change in the Composition of the Board or KMPs.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the year under review, total five meetings were held. Due to init iation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) against
the Company, meeting held on 09.09.2017 & 11.12.2017 were chaired by Insolvency Professionals wherein no Directors where present
due to ceased of power of Board of directors pursuant to section 17 of Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code 2015. While Board members met
three times for meetings held on 27.05.2017, 05.08.2017 & 10.02.2018 during the financial year. Details of meetings are given in the
Corporate Governance Report annexed herewith and forms part of this report. The intervening gap between the Meetings was within
the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received necessary declarations from each Independent Director of the Company confirming that he/ she met with the
criteria of independence as laid out in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and under Regulation 16(1)(B) of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

BOARD DIVERSITY

A diverse Board enables efficient functioning through differences in perspect ive and skill, and also fosters different iated thought
processes at the back of varied industrial and management expertise, gender, knowledge and geographical background. The Company
follows diverse Board structure.

BOARD EVALUATION

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI  (Listing Obligat ion and Disclosure Requirements) Regulat ions 2015, the
formal annual evaluation was carried out for the Board's own performance, its committee & Individual directors. The manner and detail
in which evaluation was carried out is stated in the Corporate Governance Report which is annexed and forms a part of this report.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The details in respect of internal financial control and their adequacy are included in Management Discussion and Analysis Report, which
forms part of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to observe good corporate governance practices. The report on Corporate Governance for the financial year
ended March 31, 2018, as per regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligat ions and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulat ions, 2015 forms part of this Annual Report. The requisite Certificate from the Pract icing Company Secretary of the Company
confirming compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance is annexed to this Report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

As required under Section 134 (3) (m) of the Act read with Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, part iculars relating to
conservation of Energy, R & D, Technology absorption and foreign Exchange earnings /  outgo are separately provided in the annexure
to this report  as Annexure - 1.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company had put in place an enterprise wide risk management framework. This holistic approach provides the assurance that, to
the best of i ts capabili t ies, the Company ident ifies, assesses and mit igates risks that  could materially impact i ts performance in
achieving the stated object ives. The Audit  committee ensures that the Company is taking appropriate measures to achieve prudent
balance between risk and reward in both ongoing and new business act ivit ies. The Committee reviews strategic decisions of the
Company and on regular basis, reviews the Company's port folio of risks and considers it  against the Company's Risk Appetite. The
Committee also recommends changes to the Risk Management Technique and /  or associated frameworks, processes and practices of
the Company.

VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY

The Company had implemented a vigil mechanism, whereby employees, directors and other stakeholders can report matters such as
generic grievances, corruption, misconduct, fraud, misappropriation of assets and non-compliance of code of conduct to the Company.
The policy safeguards the whistle blowers to report concerns or grievances and also provides a direct access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee. During the year under review none of the personnel has been denied access to the Chairman of Audit Committee.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Company has earned a profit  in the year under review. However, the average net profits of the Company during immediately three
preceding financial years is negative, provisions related to expenditure of atleast two percent of the average net profits in CSR activities
is presently not applicable to the Company.
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In Compliance with Sect ion 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors to the best of their knowledge and hereby
confirm the following:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March 2018, as far as possible and to the extent,
if any, accounting standards mentioned by the auditors in their report as not complied with, all other applicable accounting
standards have been followed along with proper explanat ion relating to material departure;

b) The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year
and profit  and loss account of the Company for that period;

c) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e) The directors in the case of a listed company had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effect ively.

f) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems
were adequate and operat ing effect ively.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The policy of the Company on Director's appointment and remuneration, including criteria for determining qualifications, independence
and other matters as provided under subsection (3) of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 is available on the Company's website
at www.salsteel.co.in

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 22 OF THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE ( PREVENTION, PROHIBITI ON AND
REDRESSAL) , ACT, 2013

There were no complaints pending for the redressal at the beginning of the year and no complaints received during the financial year.

PARTICULARS OF THE EMPLOYEES

Information pursuant to Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed
to this report as Annexure- 2. Further, particulars of employees remunerat ion, as prescribed under sect ion 197(12) of the Companies
Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are
not attached with this report since there was no employee who was in receipt of excess remunerat ion as prescribed.

DETAILS OF RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS PURUSANT TO SECTION 188(1)  OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

During the financial year, all t ransact ions entered into with the Related Part ies as defined under Companies Act, 2013, were in the
ordinary course of business and on an arm's length basis and as such did not attract provisions of Section 188 (1) of Companies Act,
2013. The Company has formulated policy on related party transactions. Particular of related party transactions in prescribed Form AOC-
2 is attached at Annexure-3. Approvals from the Audit Committee are obtained even for transactions which are in ordinary course of
business and repetit ive in nature. Further, on quarterly basis, disclosures are made to the Audit Committee and to the Board. Details
of related party transact ions are given in the notes to financial statements.

IND AS

Your company has adopted IND AS w.e.f. 1st April 2017 pursuant to Notification of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 16th February
2015 in place of Accounting Standards.

AUDITORS AND AUDIT REPORTS

a. Cost Auditors

Pursuant  to the provisions of Sect ion 148 of the Companies Act , 2013 and the Rules made there under M/ s. Ashish Bhavsar &
Associates, Cost Accountants were appointed for auditing cost accounting records of the Company for the year ending 31st March, 2018.
Board has further appointed M/ s. Ashish Bhavsar & Associates, Cost Accountants as Cost Auditors for the year ending 31st March 2019
subject to approval of remuneration in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

b. Internal Auditor

The Company has appointed an Independent firm of Chartered Accountants to act as an Internal Auditor as per suggestion of auditors
and recommendation of the Audit  Committee in order to strengthen the internal control system for the Company.

c. Secretarial Audi tor

Pursuant to the provisions of Sect ion 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder, the Board of Directors has
appointed M/ s Kamlesh Shah & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries, as Secretarial Auditor to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company
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for the Financial Year 2018-19. The report submitted by the Secretarial Auditor in Form MR-3 for the financial year ended as on 31st
March, 2018 is attached to this report as Annexure - 4. Remarks of secretarial auditor are self-explanatory.

d. Statutory Auditors

Directors submit their explanations for the Qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks contain in the Auditor's Report for the year
under review. Para nos. of Auditors' Report and reply are us under:

Basis for Quali f ied Opinion - Para 1

Company has paid the capital advances in earlier years for total amounting ` 9,12,32,064/ -which are currently shown under long term
loans and advances to the suppliers for the supply of customized equipments. The machines are manufactured and ready for dispatch
but lenders had stopped funding and Company does not have enough accruals to lift the machines.

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report - Para vi i  a

Payments of Statutory dues were marginally delayed on account of slow recovery/ collection. However, the same has been paid.

MATERIAL CHANGES /  INFORMATION:

1. No material changes have taken place after the closure of the financial year up to the date of this report  which may have
substantial effect on the business and financial of the Company.

2. No significant and material orders have been passed by any of the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern
status and companies operations in future.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

An extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 in compliance with Sect ion 92 of the Companies Act 2013 read with applicable rules
made thereunder is annexed to this report at Annexure - 5.

APPRECIATION

Your Directors place on record their sincere appreciat ion for the valuable support  and co-operat ion as received from government
authorit ies, Financial Institutions, Banks and ARCs during the year. Directors are also thankful for the support extended by Customers,
Suppliers and contribution made by the employees at all level. Directors would also like to acknowledge continued patronage extended
by Company's shareholders in its ent ire endeavor.

For and on behalf  of  the Board

Date:30thMay 2018 Rajendra V. Shah
Place: Santej Chairman

(DIN: 00020904)
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ANNEXURE 1

Conservat ion of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo
(Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for the year ended March 31, 2018)

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

(a) Energy conservation measures taken:-

Your company gives priority to Energy conservat ion. I t  regularly reviews measures to be taken for Energy Conservat ion/
Consumption and its effective utilization.

(b) Addit ional investments and proposals, if any, being implemented for reduction of consumption of energy:-

Your Company is highly power intensive industry and power is the basic requirements of manufacturing process. In order to
reduce the cost per unit for power consumption, the Company has installed 40 MW Captive Power Plant.

(c) Impact of measures at  (a) and (b) above for reduct ion of energy consumption and consequent  impact  on the cost  of
production of goods:

The company is operating 40 MW Captive Power Plant in parallel with GETCO Grid and with the consumption of own power,
Company saves substantial amount from the same.

(d) Total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of production:

 

( I)  POWER & FUEL CONSUMPTION 2017-18 2016-17 
  1 ELECTRICITY 

 
  

    (a)  Purchased    
    

  
  

  

Unit (Kwh) 2118956 1470240 

    Total Amount (Rs.) 43934917 41818746 
    Rate /  Unit (Rs) 20.73 28.44 

    (b)  Own Generat ion  
     (i) Through Diesel Generator Unit (Kwh)  
       

  

Unit Per Ltr of Diesel Oil Nil Nil 

    Cost /  Unit (Rs) Nil Nil 
    (ii) Through Steam Turbine /  Generator Unit (Kwh) 139680000 13559400 

    

  
  

Unit Per Kg of Lignite  0 

    Cost Lignite /  Unit (Rs) 1.2476 0.600 

  
Cost Coal /  Unit (Rs) 0.4300 1.075 

  
Cost Coal & Lignite /  Unit (Rs) 1.6776 1.675 

  2 COAL ( Including Coal Fines) 
      Quantity (MT) 17322 65123 

    Total Cost (Rs) 60403081 145761923 
    Average Rate (Rs) 3487 2238 

  3 FURNACE OIL 
      (used in the generation of power) 
      Quantity (K Ltr) Nil Nil 

    Total Cost (Rs) Nil Nil 
    Average Rate (Rs) Nil Nil 

  
4 

  
  
  
  

OTHERS – LIGNITE 
    (used in the generation of steam) 
    Quantity (K Tonns) 93011 36625 

  Total Cost (Rs) 174260695 83729170 

  Average Rate (Rs) 1874 2286 
( I I )  CONSUMTION PER M.T. OF PRODUCTION 

 
 

  Part iculars of Product  
 

 

  Electricity (in Unit) Nil Nil 
  Furnace Oil Nil Nil 

  Coal (Specify quantity) Nil Nil 
  Others Nil Nil 
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B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

(I) Research and Development (R & D)

(II) Technology absorpt ion, adaptat ion:

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO       (` in lacs)

For and on behalf  of  the Board

Date: 30th May 2018 Rajendra V. Shah
Place: Santej Chairman

(DIN: 00020904)

Part iculars 2017-18 2016-17 
1. Specific areas in which R&D carried out by the company. 
2. Benefits derived as a result of the above R&D 
3. Future plan of action: 

a. Capital 
b. Recurring 
c. Total 
d. Total R&D expenditure as a percentage of total turnover 

Nil 
 

Nil 
 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
 

Nil 
 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

 
Part iculars 2017-18 2016-17 
Company has not carried out research, development & innovation activities.  

1. Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and 
innovation. 

2. Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts, e.g. product improvement, 
cost reduction, product development, import substitution etc. 

3. In case of imported technology 
(imported during the last 5 years reckoned from the beginning of the 
financial year), following information may be furnished: 
a. Technology imported 
b. Year of import 
c. Has technology has been fully absorbed 
d. I f not fully absorbed, areas where this has not taken place, reasons 

therefore and future plans of action. 

 
 

Nil 
 

Nil 
 
 
 

Nil 

 
 

Nil 
 

Nil 
 
 
 

Nil 

 

 

 Part iculars 2017-18 2016-17 
1) EARNINGS & OUTGO  

a. Foreign Exchange earnings 
b. Foreign Exchange outgo 

 
6061.54 

15402.36 

 
1859.90 
9072.14 

2) TOTAL FOREIGN EXCHANGE USED AND EARNED 
As per notes on account 
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ANNEXURE 2
Information pursuant to Sect ion 197(12) of  the Companies Act, 2013 read wi th Rule 5(1)  of the Companies (Appointment and

Remunerat ion of Managerial Personnel)  Rules, 2014

I . The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company for the financial year:

S r. Name of director / KMP D e s ign a t io n Ratio of the remuneration of each * % increase / (decrease)
n o . director to the median in remuneration in the

remuneration of the employees of FY 2017-18
the Company for the FY 2017-18

a) Shri Sujal Shah Whole Time Director 3:1 -

b) Shri Babulal Singhal Whole Time Director
cum CFO 3:1 -

c) Shri Anil Pandya Director 3:1 -

d) Shri Nirajkumar Jain Company Secretary 2:1 -

II. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 5.15

III. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company: 410

IV. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the During the year under review, the
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile average annual increase was
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out of there negligible.
are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration;

V. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company. All remuneration of the
Employees and directors are paid
as per remuneration policy of the
Company.



ANNUAL REPORT 2017-201818

S.A.L. STEEL LIMITED

ANNEXURE 3
FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h)  of sub-sect ion (3)  of sect ion 134 of  the Act  and Rule 8(2)  of the Companies (Accounts)  Rules, 2014

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/ arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub section (1)
of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transact ions not at Arm’s length basis.

2 Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

Name (s) of the 
related party 

Nature of 
transaction 

Duration of the 
transaction 

Salient terms of 
the transaction 

Justification for 
transactions’ 

Date of 
approval by 
the Board 

Amount paid 
as advances 

Date of special 
resolution 

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 

2 Detai ls of material contracts or arrangement or transact ions at arm’s length basis 
 Name (s)  of the 

related party 
Nature of 

relat ionship 
Nature of 

transact ion 
Durat ion of 

the 
transact ion 

Transact ions 
value ) in ` 

Date of approval by 
the Board 

Amount 
paid as 

advances 
 Shah Alloys 

Limited  
Promoter 
company 

Sale of 
Power 

April 2017- 
March 2018 

39,32,73,500 Since these RPTs are 
in the ordinary 
course of business 
and are at arms’ 
length basis, 
approval of the 
Board is not 
required. However, 
these are reported 
to the Audit 
Committee /  Board 
at their quarterly 
meetings. 

N.A. 

Sale of 
material 

171,68,89,797 

Purchase of 
material & 
services 

51,76,32,021 
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ANNEXURE 4
FORM NO. MR-3 - SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2018

To,
The Members,
S.A.L. STEEL LIMITED (CIN: L29199GJ2003PLC043148)

I / we have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices followed by S A L STEEL LIMITED (Hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided
us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/  statutory compliances and on that basis; we are expressing our opinion
thereon.

Based on my/ our verification of the records of S A L STEEL LIMITED,  books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the company and also the informat ion provided by the company, i t s off icers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I / We hereby report that in my/ our opinion, the company has, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2018 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
company has proper Board-processes and compliances  mechanism in place to the extent , in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

I / We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns fi led and record maintained by S A L STEEL LIMITED (CIN:
L29199GJ2003PLC043148) for the financial year ended on 31.03.2018 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii) The Securit ies Contracts (Regulations) Act,1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act,1999 and the rules and regulation made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment,
Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings:(NOT APPLICABLE FOR THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW)

(v) The following Regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securit ies and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992('SEBI Act') :-

a) The Securit ies and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisit ion of Shares and Takeover) Regulations, 2011; (COMPLIED
WITH ANNUAL DISCLOSURE OF SHAREHOLDING AS PER REGULATION NO. 30 OF THE REGULATIONS)

b) The Securit ies and Exchange Board of India (Prohibit ion of Insider Training) Regulations,1992;

c) The Securit ies and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

d) The Securi t ies and Exchange Board of I ndia (Employee Stock Opt ion Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme)
Guidelines, 1999; (NO ESOS OR ESOPS WERE ISSUED DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW)

e) The Securit ies and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securit ies) Regulations, 2008; (NOT APPLICABLE FOR
THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW)

f) The Securit ies and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulat ions, 1993 regarding
the Companies Act and dealing with client.

g) The Securit ies and Exchange Board of India(Delisting of Equity Shares)Regulations, 2009; NOT APPLICABLE FOR THE YEAR

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)Regulations, 1998; (NOT APPLICABLE FOR THE YEAR UNDER
REVIEW)

(vi) As stated in the Annexure - A - all the laws, rules, regulations are applicable specifically to the company.

(vii) No Other Observat ions regarding other major corporate events occurred during the year and various compliances made by the
Company with applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations, List ing Agreements etc.

I / We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i) Secretarial Standards issued by The I nst i tute of Company Secretaries of I ndia and  applicable w.e.f 1st day of July 2015 are
adopted by the Company by passing requisite Board Resolutions and are complied with.

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provision of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.
mentioned above.

I/ We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly const i tuted with proper balance of Execut ive Directors, Non -Execut ives Directors,
Independent Directors and Woman Director.
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There were no changes in the composition of the Board of Directors during the year.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven
days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further   information and clarification on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views are
captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

I / We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the
company to monitor and ensure compliances with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I / We further report that during the audit period the company has not made any

(I) Public/  Right/ Preferential issue of shares/  debentures/ sweat equity, etc.

(II) Redemption/  buy-back of securities

(III) Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to section 180 of the Companies Act,  2013

IV) Foreign technical collaborations

Place: Ahmedabad ForKamlesh M. Shah & Co.,
Date: 30th May 2018 Pract icing Company Secretaries

(Kamlesh M. Shah)
Proprietor

ACS: 8356, COP: 2072

ANNEXURE-A
Securi t ies Laws

1. All Price Sensit ive Information was informed to the stock exchanges form time to t ime

2. All investors complain directly received by the RTA& Company is recorded on the same date of receipts and all are resolved within
reasonable time.

Labour Laws

1. All the premises and establishments have been registered with the appropriate authorit ies.

2. The Company has not employed any child labour/  Bonded labour in any of its establishments.

3. Provisions with relate to compliances of PF /  Gratuity Act are applicable to Company.

4. The Company is regular in filing return of PF dues.

5. The Company is making payment of Gratuity to their Employees regularly when they become due and payable except dues which
are under dispute.

6. The Company has framed a policy on prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women Employee at work place and also all preventive
measure has been taken by the Company. Since women employed by Company are less than 10 in number, Company had not formed
any committee. However, as per provisions any aggrieved women can approach "Local Complaints Committee" formed at every District
level pursuant to section 6 of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibit ion and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Environmental Laws

1. As the company is not discharging the contaminated water at the public drains /  rivers.

2. The company has been disposing the hazardous waste as per applicable rules.

Taxat ion Laws

1. The company follows provisions of the taxation and Income Tax Act, 1961 and filing the returns with Income tax department and
all other necessary departments, however, in few instances company has filed the returns with the authorit ies with delay payment
charges /  interest.

2. The company normally making payment of TDS, GST and other statutory payment with appropriate Authorities well in time except
few instances with delay payment charges /  interest.

Place: Ahmedabad ForKamlesh M. Shah & Co.,
Date: 30th May 2018 Pract icing Company Secretaries

(Kamlesh M. Shah)
Propreitor

ACS: 8356, COP: 2072
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ANNEXURE 5
Form No. MGT-9 Extract of Annual Return as on 31/ 03/ 2018

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

1. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

SR. PARTICULARS DETAILS
NO.

1 CIN L29199GJ2003PLC043148

2 Registrat ion date 06/ 11/ 2003

3 Name of the company S A L STEEL LIMITED

4 Category/  sub-category of the company Company limited by shares/  Indian Non Government Company

5 Address of the registered office and 5/ 1 Shreeji House, 5th Floor B/ h M J Library Ashram Road
contact details Ahmedabad-380006 Gujarat

6 Whether listed company YES

7 Name, address and contact details of KARVY COMPUTERSHARE PVT LTD.
registrar andtransfer agent if any Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot no. 31-32, Gachibowli,

Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad 500 032
Phone: 91-040-67162222, Fax: 91-040-23001153
Toll Free no.: 1800-345-4001
E-mail: varghese1@karvy.com
Website:www.karvycomputershare.com

2. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activit ies contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

3. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES –

SL. 
No. 

Name and descriptions of main products/  services NIC  Code of the product/  
Service 

%  to Total turnover of the 
company 

1 Sponge Iron & Ferro Chrome 271 72.05 

 

S. NO. Name and address of the Company CIN/ GLN CONCERN % of shares held by 
Company 

Applicable Section 

  NA    

 

mailto:varghese1@karvy.com
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4. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capi tal Breakup as percentage of  Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

 

Category of Shareholders 
 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % 
Change  

 Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares 

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares 

 

A. Promoters          
(1) a) 
Indian/ Individual/ HUF 

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

b) Central Govt NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
c) State Govt. (s) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
d) Bodies Corp. 42959889 NIL 42959889 50.56 42959889 NIL 42959889 50.56 NIL 
e) Banks /  FI NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
f) Any Other… . NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
Sub-total (A) (1):- 42959889 NIL 42959889 50.56 42959889 NIL 42959889 50.56 NIL 
(2) Foreign          
a) NRIs - Individuals NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
b) Other – Individuals NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
c) Bodies Corp. NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
d) Banks /  FI NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
e) Any Other… . NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Sub-total (A) (2):- 
Total shareholding of 
Promoter  
(A) = (A) (1)+(A)(2)  

42959889 NIL 42959889 50.56 42959889 NIL 42959889 50.56 NIL 

B. Public Shareholding 
1. Institutions 

         

a) Mutual Funds NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
b)Banks/ FI 5000 NIL 5000 0.00 5000 NIL 5000 0.00 NIL 
c) Central Govt NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
d) State Govt(s) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
e) Venture Capital Funds NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
f) Insurance Companies NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
g) FIIs NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

h) Foreign Venture Capital NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
Funds 
i) Others (specify) 

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Sub-total (B) (1): 5000 NIL 5000 0.01 5000 NIL 5000 0.01 NIL 

2. Non-Institutions          
a) Bodies Corp. 10576446 NIL 10576446 12.45 11852396 NIL 11852396 13.95 1.50 

i) Indian 
ii) Overseas 

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

b) Individuals          
i) Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share 
capital upto` 2 lakh 

23123035 103310 23226345 27.34 21341122 85310 21426432 25.22 (2.12) 

ii) Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share 
capital in excess of ` 2 lakh 

7684642 125000 7809642 9.19 7978454 125000 8103454 9.54 0.35 

c) Others 
(TRUSTS, NON RESIDENT , 
NBFC &CLEARING MEMBERS 
& NBFC) 

389378 NIL 389378 0.46 619529 NIL 619529 0.73 0.27 

Sub-total (B) (2):- 41773501 228310 42000211 49.44 41791501 210310 42001811 49.44 NIL 

Total Public Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)  

41778501 228310 42005211 49.44 41796501 210310 42006811 49.44 NIL 

C. shares held by custodian 
for GDRs & ADRs 

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

GRAND TOTAL  (A+B+C) 84736790 228310 84966700 100.00 84756390 210310 84966700 100.00 NIL 
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ii) Shareholding of promoters

i i i ) Change in Promoter’s Shareholding

5. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDER (OTHER THAN DIRECTORS, PROMOTERS AND HOLDERS OF GDRS AND ADRS)

6. SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

SHAH ALLOYS LTD Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Cumulative shareholding during 
the year 

At the beginning of the year 30256989 35.61 30256989 35.61 

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters Share holding 
during the year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease 
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc) : 

No  change No  change No  change No  change 

At the end of the  year 30256989 35.61 30256989 35.61 

 
SAL CARE PVT LTD Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year 
Cumulative shareholding 

during the year 

At the beginning of the year 12702900 14.95 12702900 14.95 

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters Share holding 
during the year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease 
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc) : 

No  change No  change No  change No  change 

At the end of the  year 12702900 14.95 12702900 14.95 

 

Name of 
promoter 

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year 

Shareholding at the end of the year % change in 
shares 
holding 

during the 
year 

 No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of 

the 
company 

% of shares 
pledged/ 

encumbered 
to total 
shares 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of 

the 
company 

% of shares 
pledged/ 

encumbered 
to total 
shares 

Shah alloys ltd.  30256989 35.61 30256989 30256989 35.61 30256989 NIL 
Sal Care Pvt. Ltd. 12702900 14.95 12702900 12702900 14.95 12702900 NIL 
Total 42959889 50.56 42959889 42959889 50.56 50.56 NIL 

 

SR. 
NO. 

NAME OF THE SHAREHOLDERS Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year 

Cumulat ive Shareholding during 
the year 

No. of 
shares 

% of total shares of 
the company 

No. of shares % of total shares 
of the company 

1 Satellite Mercantiles Pvt. Ltd.      3566638 4.20 3566638 4.20 
2 Gujarat NRE Coke Ltd.                                      2737682 3.22 2737682 3.22 
3 Gujarat NRE Mineral Resources Ltd. 1445633 1.70 1445633 1.70 
4 Phillipcapital (India) Private Limited - - 408404 0.48 
5 Ashvin V Shah 377000 0.44 377000 0.44 
6 Manish Shah - - 360790 0.42 
7 Shah JayeshkumarVijaykumar 304936 0.36 304936 0.36 

8 JayeshVijaykumar Shah 278412 0.33 278412 0.33 
9 Shah MonalJayeshkumar 261415 0.31 261415 0.31 
10 Jainam Share Consultants Pvt. Ltd. 211380 0.25 273675 0.25 
 Total 9183096 10.81 10014585 11.71 

 
Shri  Ambalal C Patel Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year 
Cumulative shareholding during 

the year 

At the beginning of the year 89000 0.10 89000 0.10 
Date wise Increase /  Decrease in Promoters Share 
holding during the year specifying the reasons for 
increase /  decrease (e.g. allotment /  transfer /  bonus/  
sweat equity etc) : 

No  Change No  Change No  Change No  Change 

At the end of the  year 89000 0.10 89000 0.10 
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7. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the company including interest outstanding/ accrued but not due for payment

8. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

a. Remunerat ion to Managing Di rector, Whole-t ime Di rectors and/ or Manager:

b. Remunerat ion to other directors:

Sl. 
No.   

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount 
Rs. 

1. 
 

Salary 
 
 

Shri Sujal Shah 4,32,000 
Shri B.M Singhal (WTD & CFO) 4,92,000 
Shri Anil Pandya 4,80,000 

2. Stock Option NIL NIL 
3. Sweat Equity NIL NIL 
4. Commission 

- as % of profit 
- others, specify… 

NIL NIL 

5. Others, please specify NIL NIL 
 Total (A) NIL NIL 
 Ceiling as per the Act As per Section (II) Part (II) of Schedule V. 

 

 

Particulars Secured Loans 
excluding 
deposits 

Unsecured Loans Deposits Total Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the 
f inancial year 

  
  

    

i) Principal Amount 1720749023 105275726 - 1826024749 
ii) Interest due but not paid 722226721 - - 722226721 
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - -  
Total ( i+i i+i i i )  2442975744 105275726 - 2548251470 

Change in Indebtedness during the 
f inancial year  
 Addition - - - - 
 Reduction 697825744 103885123 - 801710867 
Net Change  103885123 - - 
Indebtedness at the end of the f inancial 
year  
i) Principal Amount 1745150000 1390603 - 1746540603 
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - - 
iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - - 
Total ( i+i i+i i i )  1745150000 1390603 - 1746540603 

 

Part iculars of  
Remunerat ion 

Name of Directors 
  

 Independent Directors Shri  A.C. 
Patel 

Shri  Tejpal 
S. Shah 

Shri  
Harshad M. 

Shah 

Shri  Jethalal 
M. Shah 

Shri  Shrikant 
N Jhaveri   

Smt. 
Shefali  M. 

Patel 

Total 
Amount  

Rs. 
 Fee for attending 
board /  committee 
meetings 

30000 22500 45000 45000 45000 
 

22500 210000 

Commission 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Others, please specify 
Total 30000 22500 45000 45000 45000 22500 210000 
Overall Ceiling as per 
the Act 

Ceiling for sitting fee as per Section 197 (5) read with Rule 4 of Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014 is Rs. 1,00,000/ - per meeting of Board/ Committee 
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9. Remunerat ion to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/ Manager/ WTD

10. PENALTIES /  PUNISHMENT/  COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type 
 

Section of 
the 

Companies 
Act 

Brief 
Description 

Details of Penalty 
/Punishment/ 

Compounding fees 
imposed 

Authority 
[RD / NCLT 

/ Court] 

Appeal made, 
if any (give 

Details) 

A. COMPANY 
Penalty  No No No No No 
Punishment No No No No No 
compounding No No No No No 
B. DIRECTORS  
Penalty  No No No No No 
punishment No No No No No 
compounding No No No No No 
C. Other Officers In Default 
Penalty  No No No No No 
punishment No No No No No 
compounding No No No No No 

 

SN Part iculars of Remunerat ion Key Managerial Personnel 
    CS CFO/ CEO Total 
  Shri Nirajkumar Jain  Shri Babulal Singhal  
1 Gross salary 4,20,000  4,92,000 9,12,000 
2 Stock Option N.A.  N.A. N.A. 
3 Sweat Equity N.A.  N.A. N.A. 
4 Commission N.A.  N.A. N.A. 
  -  as % of profit N.A.  N.A. N.A. 
  others, specify…  N.A.  N.A. N.A. 
5 Others, please specify N.A.  N.A. N.A. 
  Total 4,20,000  4,92,000 9,12,000 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
[ Pursuant to Part C of Schedule V of  the SEBI (List ing Obligat ions and Disclosure Requirements)  Regulat ions, 2015 “List ing

Regulat ions”]

Detailed report on Corporate Governance for the financial year ended March 31, 2018, as per regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is set out below:

1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE :

The Company implements and practices the principles of Corporate Governance based on fairness, transparency, integrity, honesty
and accountability consistently being followed in all its business practices and dealings.

The Company is committed to observe good governance by focusing on adequate & t imely disclosures, transparent  & robust
accounting policies, strong & independent Board and endeavors to maximize shareholders benefit.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS :

COMPOSITION AND CATEGORY

Composition of Board and Directorship held as on March 31, 2018 and numbers of meetings held and attended during the year
are as follows:

*  During the year total five meetings were held wherein three meet ings were conducted by Board of Directors and two were conducted by
Insolvency Resolut ion Professional /  Resolut ion Professional.
* *  As powers of Board of Directors were suspended due to commencement of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), Members of Board
of Directors has attended only three meet ings.
* * *  Since powers of Board of Directors were suspended members of Board of Directors has not attended Annual General Meeting.
The composit ion of the Board of Directors of the Company represents an appropriate mix of execut ive and non-execut ive directors to ensure
the independency of the Board and to separate the board funct ions of governance and management . The Board current ly comprises of three
Execut ive Directors and Seven Non-Execut ive Directors including the Chairman of the Board.
Independent Directors' Meeting
I ndependent  Di rectors met  on February 10, 2018 wi thout  presence of Non- I ndependent  Di rectors and members of the
Management. At this meeting, the Independent Directors inter alia evaluated performance of the Non-Independent Directors and
the Board of Directors as a whole, evaluated the performance of the Chairman of the Board and discussed aspects relating to the

 

Name of 
Director 

Category 
 

Numbers of Board 
Meetings 

No. of 
Directorships held 

( including SSL) 

Committee Memberships 
held in other companies 

( including SSL) 

Attendance at 
Last AGM* * *  

Held during 
the year 

Attended 
during the 

Year 

as member as Chairman 
 

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
Shri Rajendra V. 
Shah 

Promoter 
Non- Executive 
Chairman 

5* 3**  1 1 Nil No 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 
Shri Sujal Shah Non Promoter 

Executive Director 
5* 3**  Nil Nil Nil No 

Shri Babulal 
Singhal 

Non Promoter 
Whole time 
Director 

5* 3**  Nil Nil Nil Yes 

Shri Anil Pandya Non Promoter 
Whole time 
Director 

5* 3**  Nil Nil Nil No 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
Shri Ambalal C. 
Patel 

Non – Executive & 
Independent 

5* 2**  7 6 2 No 

Shri Harshad M. 
Shah 

Non-Executive & 
Independent 

5* 3**  1 1 Nil No 

Shri Tejpal S. 
Shah 

Non-Executive & 
Independent 

5* 3**  1 2 Nil No 

Shri Jethalal M. 
Shah 

Non-Executive & 
Independent 

5* 3**  Nil Nil Nil No 

Shri Shrikant N. 
Jhaveri 

Non-Executive & 
Independent 

5* 3**  1  Nil Nil  No 

Smt. Shefali M. 
Patel 

Non-Executive & 
Independent 

5* 3**  1 Nil Nil No 
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quality, quantity and t imeliness of the flow of information between the Company's Management and the Board.
DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN DIRECTORS INTER-SE
None of the Directors are related to each other.
SHAREHOLDING OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
As on March 31 2018, Shri Ambalal C. Patel, Independent Director of the Company held 89,000 shares in the equity share capital
of the Company. None of the other Non-Execut ive Directors hold any equity shares in the Company.
DETAILS OF FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMMES IMPARTED TO INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
Pursuant to regulation 25(7) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company should
familiarise the independent directors through various programs about the Company. During the financial year, senior management
team has from time to time made presentations to Directors giving an overview of the Company's operations, function, strategy
and risk management plan of the Company.

3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
The Board has constituted various Committees to focus on specific areas and to make informed decisions within their authority.
Each Committee is governed by its Charter which out lines the scope, roles, responsibili t ies and powers. All the decisions and
recommendations of the Committee are placed before the Board for its approval.
The various Board level Committees are as under:-
• Audit Committee;
• Nomination & Remuneration Committee; and
• Stakeholders Relationship Committee
• Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
AUDIT COMMITTEE:
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are wide enough to cover matters specified for Audit Committees under Regulation
18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirements), Regulations 2015 as well as in Section 177 of the Companies Act,
2013besides other terms as may be referred to by Board of Directors from t ime to t ime.
The Audit Committee comprises of four non-executive Directors and all of them are Independent Directors. During the period under
review, three Audit Committee meetings were held respectively on 27.05.2017, 05.08.2017 and 10.02.2018. The composition of
the Audit Committee and attendance at i ts meetings is given hereunder:

The Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting of the Company.

4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The Remunerat ion Committee comprises of three independent Non-executive directors

During the period under review, three meet ings of Nominat ion and Remunerat ion Commit tee were held on 27.05.2017,
05.08.2017 and 10.02.2018.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been constituted to recommend/ review the remuneration package of the Managing/
Whole Time Directors and KMPs based on performance and defined criteria.

Board Evaluat ion
Pursuant  to sect ion 134 of the Companies Act , 2013, the Board is responsible for the formal Annual Evaluat ion of i ts own
performance, of its committee & Individual Directors. Further, as per regulat ion 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, performance evaluation of the Independent Directors shall be done by entire Board of Directors,
excluding directors being evaluated.

During the year, Board in concurrence with Nomination & Remuneration Committee has laid down the evaluation criteria for itself,
Committees, Chairperson, Execut ive and Non- Execut ive Directors and Independent Directors. The evaluation was carried out
through a structured questionnaire covering various aspects of the functioning of the Board of Directors.

The following broad parameters were considered to evaluate the performance of the independent Directors:
• Integrity, maintenance of high standard and confidentiality;

• Commitment and participation at the Board & Committee meetings;

Name of Director Posi t ion No. of Meetings Meetings attended 

Shri Jethabhai M. Shah Chairman 3 3 

Shri Ambalal C. Patel Member 3 2 

Shri Harshad M. Shah Member 3 3 

Shri Shrikant N. Jhaveri Member 3 3 

 

Name of Director Posi t ion No. of Meetings Meetings attended 

Shri Jethalal bhai M. Shah Chairman 3 3 
Shri Ambalal C. Patel Member 3 2 

Shri Harshad M. Shah Member 3 3 
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• Effective deployment of knowledge and expertise;

• Exercise of independent judgment in the best interest of Company;

• Interpersonal relationships with other directors and management.

The following broad parameters were considered to evaluate the performance of the Board and Committees:

• Size, structure and expertise of the Board/ Committees;

• Review of strategies, risk assessment, robustness of policies and procedures by Board;

• Oversight of the financial reporting process & monitoring Company's internal control system;

• Quality of agenda, conduct of meeting, procedures and process followed for effective discharge of functions;

• Effect ive discharge of funct ions and dut ies by Committee as per terms of reference;

• Appropriateness and timeliness of the updates given on regulatory developments;

• Board's engagement with senior management team.

5. Remunerat ion of Directors
a. All Pecuniary Relationship or Transactions of the Non- Executive Directors

There were no pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-executive directors vis a vis the Company.

b. Criteria for Making Payment to Non- Executive Directors

Role of Non-Executive/ Independent Directors of the Company is not just restricted to corporate governance or outlook
of the Company but they also bring with them significant professional expert ise and rich experience across the wide
spectrum of functional areas. The Company seeks their expert advice on various matters from time to time. Hence, the
compensation to the non-executive/ independent directors is recommended.

c. Compensation/ Fees Paid to Non-Executive Directors

Non-Executive Independent Directors were paid sitt ing fees for attending the Board and Committee Meetings.

d. Details of Remunerations

Details of remuneration and sitting fees paid or provided to all the directors during the year ended March 31, 2018 are
as under:

6. SHAREHOLDERS’/ INVESTORS’ GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE:

The Committee is empowered to oversee the redressal of Investors’ complaints and other miscellaneous complaints. The Company
as a matter of policy disposes of investor complaints within a span of five working days.

During the period under review, four meetings of Stakeholders' grievance Committee were held on 27.05.2017, 05.08.2017 and
10.02.2018.

Name and designat ion of Compliance Of f i cer

Shri  Nirajkumar Jain, Company Secretary has been appointed as Compliance Officer of the Company as per regulat ion 6 of
the SEBI  (List ing Obligat ions and Disclosure Requi rements) Regulat ions, 2015 to discharge all dut ies under the list ing
regulat ions.

Name of Director Si t t ing Fees 
(Rs.)  

Salaries & 
Perquisi tes (Rs.)  

Commission 
(Rs.)  

Total (Rs.)  
 

Shri Rajendra V. Shah Nil Nil Nil Nil 
Shri Sujal A. Shah Nil 4,32,000 Nil 4,32,000 
Shri Babulal M. Singhal Nil 4,92,000 Nil 4,92,000 
Shri Anilkumar Pandya Nil 4,80,000 Nil 4,80,000 
Shri Ambalal C. Patel 30,000 Nil Nil 30,000 
Shri Tejpal S. Shah 22,500 Nil Nil 22,500 
Shri Harshad M. Shah 45,000 Nil Nil 45,000 
Shri Jethalal M. Shah 45,000 Nil Nil 45,000 
Shri Shrikant N. Jhaveri 45,000 Nil Nil 45,000 
Smt. Shefali M. Patel 22,500 Nil Nil 22,500 

 

Name of Director Posi t ion No. of Meetings Meetings attended 

Shri Jethabhai M. Shah Chairman 3 3 

Shri Ambalal C. Patel Member 3 2 

Shri Harshad M. Shah Member 3 3 
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Detai ls of  Shareholders Complaints

The detai ls of shareholders complaints received and resolved t i ll March 31, 2018 are as under:

No. of shareholders’ complaints received during the year: Ni l

No. of complaints not resolved to the sat isfact ion ofshareholders:Ni l

No. of pending Complaints:Ni l

No. of complaints resolved during the year: Ni l

7. GENERAL BODY MEETING

Date, Time and Venue of the last three Annual General Meetings:

1. No extra-ordinary general meeting of the shareholders was held during the year.

2. Postal ballot: during the year under review, no resolution was put through by postal ballot.

8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

a. All Quarterly /  Annual financial results are immediately sent to stock exchanges after being taken on record by the Board.

b. As per the requirements of SEBI  (List ing Obligat ions and Disclosure Requirements), Regulat ions, 2015, results are also
published in leading daily local & English National newspapers namely Indian Express and Financial Express. The said results
are also displayed at Company’s web site.

c. The Company’s website www.salsteel.co.in contains a separate dedicated section named “Investors” where information for
shareholders i s avai lable. Press releases, i f  any, are also displayed at  Company’s websi te as wel l as publ ished in
newspapers.

9. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

The Company is registered in the State of Gujarat having Corporate Identification Number (CIN) as allotted by Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (MCA) as L29199GJ2003PLC043148.

a) Annual General Meet ing.

Date : 29th September, 2018

Time : 10:00 A.M.

Venue: SAL Institute & Engineering Research, Opp. Science City, Ahmedabad: 380 060.

b) Financial Year

For accounting and financial reporting purpose, Company follows Financial Year which starts from 1st April each year and ends
on 31st March of every succeeding year.

The Quarterly Results for the financial year 2018-19 will be taken on record by the Board of Directors as per the following
schedule:

Quarter ending 30th June 2018 : By 14th August 2018

Quarter ending 30th September 2018 : By 14th November 2018

Quarter ending 31st December 2018 : By 14th February 2019

Quarter ending 31st March 2019 : By 30th May 2019

c) Dividend Payment Date : Not Applicable

d) List ing on Stock Exchange : Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.(BSE)
Phiroze Jeejee bhoy Towers Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400001
(Scrip Code: 532604)

: Nat ional Stock Exchange of  India Ltd (NSE)
“Exchange Plaza”, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai – 400051
(NSE Symbol: SALSTEEL)

Company has paid listing fees in respect of financial year 2017-2018 to the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and National
Stock Exchange of India Limited.

Year Date Time Venue 
No. of special resolut ions passed 

2014-15 September 24th, 2015. 10:30 A.M. SAL Institute & Engineering Research, 
Opp. Science City, Ahmedabad 380 060 

 
0 

2015-16 September 24th, 2016. 09:30 A.M. SAL Institute & Engineering Research, 
Opp. Science City, Ahmedabad 380 060 

 
1 

2016-17 September 30th, 2017. 10:00 A.M. SAL Institute & Engineering Research, 
Opp. Science City, Ahmedabad 380 060 

1 
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Demat ISIN No. for NSDL and CDSL : INE658G01014

e) Stock code : Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.(BSE)Scrip Code: 532604

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd (NSE)Symbol: SALSTEEL

f) Share Price Data (` per share)

g) Registrar to Issue and Share Transfer Agents

The members of the Company may address all i t communication relat ing to transfer, t ransmission, Refund order, Dividend,
National Electronic Clearing system (NECS) dematerialisation etc. to Company’s Share Transfer agent i.e. Karvy Computershare
Private Limited at the below address and may also write to the Company.

Name : Karvy Computershare Private Limited
Address : Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot no. 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District,

Nanakramguda, Hyderabad, - 500 032.
Phone : 91-040-67162222
Fax : 91-040-23001153
Toll Free no. : 1800-345-4001
Email : shyam.kumar@karvy.com
Website : www.karvycomputershare.com

h) Share Transfer System

All t ransfers of shares held in physical form are dealt  by our Registrar and Share Transfer Agents. Present ly the share
transfers received in physical form are processed and registered within prescribed time periods (15) days from the date of
receipt subject to the documents being valid and complete in all respects. Depositories control share transfers in Demat
Mode. The Company obtains from a Company Secretary in Pract ice half yearly cert i f icate of compliance in respect  of
compliance with share transfer formalit ies as required under Regulations 40(9) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulat ions, 2015 and fi les a copy of the certificate with the stock exchanges.

i ) Shareholding pattern as on 31st  March, 2018

Distribut ion of shareholding as on 31st March, 2018

Month Price at BSE Price at NSE 
Month’s High Price Month’s Low Price Month’s High Price Month’s Low Price 

Apr’ 17 7.23 4.76 7.20 4.75 

May’ 17 8.74 5.67 8.65 5.75 

June’ 17 7.21 5.26 7.20 5.25 

July’ 17 8.50 6.20 8.75 6.05 

Aug’ 17 8.00 5.99 7.80 5.35 

Sept’ 17 6.95 5.00 6.80 4.80 

Oct’ 17 8.96 4.90 8.90 4.65 

Nov’ 17 7.69 6.00 7.75 6.05 

Dec’ 17 6.89 5.80 6.95 5.70 

Jan’ 18 8.28 6.45 8.25 6.45 

Feb’ 18 7.94 5.84 7.95 5.80 

Mar’ 18 9.17 6.85 9.10 6.95 

 

Category No. of Shares % 
Promoters 42959889 50.56 
Clearing Members 209212 0.25 
Indian Public 27468194 32.33 

Domestic Companies 11852396 13.95 

Nationalized Bank/  Insurance Company /  NBFC 5300 0.00 

NRI 329542 0.39 

NRI  NON-REPATRIATION                80475 0.09 

HUF 2061692 2.43 

Total   84966700 100.00 

 

mailto:shyam.kumar@karvy.com
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j) Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

On March 31st 2018, nearly 99.75% of the shareholders of Company were holding Company’s shares in demat form. In the same
way, Promoters & Promoters-group shareholding was also fully dematerialized.

k) Plant Location:

 The Company’s plant is located at: Survey No. 245, Village Bharapar, Tal. Gandhidham, Dist. Kutch, Gujarat

l) Registered & Administrative Offices:

Registered Office Administrat ive Office:
 5/ 1, Shreeji House, SAL Steel Limited,
 Behind M. J. Library, Ashram Road Corporate House,
Ahmedabad – 380006, Gujarat Sola-Kalol Road, Village Santej,

Dist: Gandhinagar, Gujarat – 382721

m) Address for Investor Correspondence:

 In case any problem or query shareholders can contact at:

Name : Nirajkumar V. Jain,Company Secretary cum Compliance officer

Address : S.A.L. Steel Limited,
Shah Alloys Corporate House, Sola-Kalol Road, Santej, Dist. Gandhinagar, Gujarat 382 721

Phone : 91-02764-661100/ 11
Fax : 91-02764-661110
Email : sal.investor@salsteel.co.in

Shareholders may also contact Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agent at:

Name  : Karvy Computershare Private Limited
Address : Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot no. 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad, - 500 032.
Phone : 91-040-67162222
Fax :  91-040-23001153
Toll Free no. : 1800-345-4001
Email : shyam.kumar@karvy.com
Website : www.karvycomputershare.com

OTHER DISCLOSURES :

Disclosures on materially signi f icant related party transact ions that may have potent ial conf lict  wi th the interests of listed
ent i ty at  large:

There is no materially significant related party transaction that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at
large have been entered.

During the financial year, all t ransactions entered into with the Related Parties as defined under Companies Act, 2013, were in
the ordinary course of business and on an arm's length basis and did not attract provisions of Section 188 of Companies Act, 2013.
However, prior approvals from the Audit  Committee are obtained for transactions which are in ordinary course of business and
repetit ive in nature. Further, on quarterly basis, disclosures are made to the Audit  Committee and to the Board.

Details of related party transact ions are also presented in the notes to financial statements.

The Company has formulated the policy on materiality of related party transactions and on dealing with related party transactions
and it  is available at the website of the Company at: ht tp:/ / www.salsteel.co.in.

Shareholding (Range) No. of Shares % No. of Members % 

Up to 5000 4676467 5.50 18736 70.00 
5001     - 10000 3614029 4.25 4036 15.08 
10001   - 20000 3005133 3.54 1842 6.88 
20001   - 30000 1814508 2.14 687 2.57 
30001   - 40000 1068127 1.26 291 1.09 
40001   - 50000 1681367 1.98 349 1.30 
50001   - 100000 3107680 3.66 413 1.54 
100001 & above 65999389 77.68 411 1.54 

Total 849667000 100 26765 100.00 
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Detai ls of non-compliance by the listed ent i ty, penalt ies and structures imposed on the listed ent i ty by stock exchange(s)  or
the board or any statutory authori ty, on any mat ter related to capital markets, during the last three years:

Pursuant to Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, Company delayed in the appointment of women director on the Board and
accordingly BSE and NSE imposed penalty on the Company in the Financial Year 2015-16. During the period under review, there
is no non-compliance or penalty imposed by any authority.

Establishment of vigi l  mechanism and aff i rmat ion that  no personnel has been denied access to the audit  committee:

The Company has implemented a Vigil Mechanism Policy, whereby employees, directors and other stakeholders can report matters
such as generic grievances, corruption, misconduct, fraud, misappropriation of assets and non-compliance to code of conduct to
the Company. The policy safe guards the whistle blowers to report concerns or grievances and also provides a direct access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee. During the financial year none of the personnel has been denied access to the audit committee.

Corporate Governance Compliance Cert i f icate

Compliance Cert ificate from M/ s Kiran Kumar Patel, Pract icing Company Secretaries, as regarding compliance of conditions of
corporate governance is annexed with corporate governance report.

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP).
The Company has prepared these financial statements to comply in all material respects with the Accounting Standards, notified
under sect ion 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules
2014.

CEO and CFO Cert i f icat ion

As required by Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, CFO has given
Compliance Cert ificate on financial statements to the Board of Directors.

DECLARATI ON REGARDI NG COMPLI ANCE WI TH THE COMPANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENI OR
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

We, Anil Pandya, Whole Time Director & Babulal M. Singhal, Whole Time Director & CFO of the Company, hereby certify that all
Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed their compliance with the Code of Conduct in
accordance with Regulations of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 entered into with Stock
Exchange. Company has adopted a code of conduct  for all Board members and senior management of the company which is
posted on the website of the company.

We further confirm that during the year, none of the Directors or any of the Key managerial persons had done any trading in shares
of the Company in the secondary market. Further the company had not made any allotment of shares to any Directors or any of
the key managerial personnel during the year.

The above Report was adopted by the Board at their meeting held on 30th May 2018.

For, S.A.L. Steel Limited

Place:Santej Anil Pandya Babulal M. Singhal
Date: 28.05.2018 Whole time Director Whole Time Director &CFO

(DIN 02453919)   (DIN 01484213)
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
To
The Members of
S.A.L. STEEL LIMITED

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by S.A.L Steel Limited ('the Company'), for the year ended 31st
March, 2018 as per the relevant provisions of SEBI  (List ing Obligat ions and Disclosure Requirements) Regulat ions, 2015 ('List ing
Regulations') as referred to in the Listing Regulations for the period 1st April, 2017 to 31st March ,2018.

The compliance of condit ions of Corporate Governance is the responsibi li ty of the Management. Our examinat ion was limited to
procedures and implementat ion thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the condit ions of Corporate
Governance. I t  is neither an audit  nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we cert ify that the Company has
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned List ing Regulations, as applicable.

We further state that  such compliance is nei ther an assurance as to the future viabi li ty of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

FOR, K.K PATEL AND ASSOCIATES

Sd/ -
Place : Gandhinagar Kiran Kumar Patel
Date  : 30.05.2018 Company Secretary

CP No. 6352

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

In FY 2017-18, the global economic activity continued to firm up. As per the International Monetary Fund (IMF), the global output is
est imated to have grown by 3.7% in 2017, which is 0.5 percentage point higher than in 2016. The pickup in growth has been broad
based, with noteworthy upside developments in Europe and Asia. The forecast for global growth in 2018 and 2019 is upward at 3.9%.
This forecast reflects the increased global growth momentum.

The growth momentum is expected to be stimulated by the U.S tax policy changes, with increased investment response in the U.S. I t
estimated that the growth rate in the U.S will be positive through 2020. Growth rates for many of the euro area economies have been
picking up, especially for Germany, I taly, and the Netherlands. This, in turn, reflects the stronger momentum in domestic demand and
higher external demand. However, the growth is expected to moderate gradually in China.

I n the near term, the risks to the global growth forecast  appear to be balanced, however, some of the inward-looking policies,
geopolit ical tensions and polit ical uncertainty in some countries could pose downside risks.

INDIAN ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

India is going through a lot of structural reforms. The government has taken strides towards reviving the agricultural sector and boost
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSMEs) growth, facilitating tax reform (GST), drive infrastructure growth and enhancing financial
inclusion. India is steadily moving towards sustaining growth in the near and long-term.

In the backdrop of the structural reforms, the international credit rating agency Moody's upgraded India's credit ratings to Baa2 from
Baa3 after a gap of around 13 years. The Economic Survey of India 2017-18, projects Indian economy to grow at 6.5% during FY 2017-
18, with FY 2018-19 growth expected to be around 7 to 7.5%. Moreover, the country was ranked at the hundredth position, registering
an improvement of 30 places, in the World Bank's Ease of Doing Business (EoDB) 2017 report.

Additionally, some improvements on the industry sector emanated from a steady rise in utilities and a revival in manufacturing activity.
This turnaround in production levels is possibly a reflection of growing consumption demand.

Some of the policy reforms and actions that have fuelled this growth are:

Impetus on infrastructure growth

The Government is focused on strengthening the key pillars of the economy, agriculture, healthcare and infrastructure. To boost road
infrastructure in the country and foster job creation, the Government of India (GoI) announced an investment outlay of INR 6.9 lakh
crore to construct 83, 677 km of road network, over a period of five years. The Government estimates that around USD 4.5 trillion worth
of investments are required by India till 2040 to develop infrastructure to improve economic growth and community well-being.

Growing potent ial of  the rural economy

The Government of India has taken numerous initiatives for boosting rural economy and demand. Some of these schemes include plans
of spending INR 14.34 lakh crore (trillion) in rural infrastructure and livelihood spending. I t also includes the increase in the minimum
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support price of crops to at least 1.5 times their production cost. Rural economy being agriculture-based, this will give a huge impetus
to rural growth and demand.

Thrust to the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

The 2018-19 Budget of the Government of India has given a big thrust to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSMEs) sector to boost
employment and economic growth. The government has made allocation worth Rs 3794 crore to the MSME sector for credit support,
capital and interest subsidy on innovat ion. With the tax reforms, the businesses of MSMEs are increasingly formalised, which will
generate substantial information for MSMEs and help in financing them.

Support ive policy environment:

i  )  Goods and Services tax

The Goods and Services Tax was launched in July 2017 with the aim to consolidate all other indirect tax laws, except a few and also
to bring a harmonised tax structure and uniform compliance pract ices both by regulators and businesses. Post GST implementation,
India's tax net expanded by 50%. GST is expected to bring various benefits to businesses and consumers such as compliance, input tax
credits, reduced logistic costs and a transportation tax regime.

i i )  Insolvency and bankruptcy code

Launched in December 2016, the code is a one-stop solution for resolving insolvencies which at present is a long process and does not
offer an economically viable arrangement. The code will be able to protect the interests of small investors and make the process of doing
business simpler.

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

Steel is one of the most  important products of the modern world and is of st rategic importance to any industrial nat ion. From
construction, industrial machinery and transportation to consumer products, steel finds a wide variety of applications. I t is also an
industry with diverse production-technologies based on the nature and extent of use of raw materials. I t is often said that steel industry
is the barometer of the economic health of the nat ion, at least in the early stages of economic development.

Domestic steel market has overcome the effects of glut in the market due to cheap imports mainly from China; industry is back to
profitability on increased demand in domestic market aided by strong exports. Steel industry has turned around during FY 2017-18 when
compared to two preceding years.

As per the international rating agency Moody's, among the major steel-producing Asian countries, operating conditions will be the most
support ive in India, because of the robust domestic demand and protect ionist  measures. This is despite an increase in raw material
prices and new capacity additions.

A supportive policy environment and improved performance in the steel industry, Indian sponge iron industry has got a big boost. As,
sponge iron contributes to 23% of India's total crude steel production of 97MT.

India is world's largest sponge iron producer with an annual installed capacity of 46-47 MT. There are over 400 sponge iron units in
India.

Indian sponge iron industry is highly fragmented. Top 20 producers contribute about 60-65% of total production whereas rest contribute
35-40% of the production.

During FY 2018-19, domestic sponge iron production is expected to increase by 10% and its total production is likely to cross 23 MT.
This has become possible mainly due to increased availability of iron ore at competitive prices; iron ore pellet supplies have also eased
out and has supported sponge iron industry.

Globally too, due to positive sentiments in the steel market, sponge iron production has increased during 2018 to 73 MT from 72.76 MT
during 2017. A significant development on the DRI scenario, is the rapid strides I ran has made in recent years. With an output of 20.5
MT ( a rise of 6 % ) in the calendar year 2017, it stood second to India that produced 25.8 MT ( a drop of 8 % ), according to WSI. With
the new DRI plants coming up that uses the PERED ( joint I ranian - German ) technology, I ran is billed to become the top producer of
DRI in the world soon. India needs to come up with DRI production that must be competitive by global standard and is environmentally
friendly.

India is set to become the second largest steel producer in the world as economic growth drives the demand; this is evident from the
keen interest and competit ion seen in acquiring the stressed companies in the steel sector.

Overall during the next few years, we can expect a competit ive, robust and consolidated steel sector in India.

Opportunities

Sponge Iron is no longer considered as an alternative to scrap rather considered as a raw material for steel making in electric furnaces.
I t  is being used as a principle raw material and is charged at 40-80% of the charge mix in furnaces. India has abundant reserves of
iron ore and non-coking coal suitable for sponge iron making and it has been a major factor in the establishment of the industry.
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As per the National steel policy crafted during FY 2017-18, the crude steel production target for India is set at 300 MT by 2030. Share
of sponge iron in steel making will be 80MT, which will create huge opportunity for sponge iron industry.

Threats

Presently there are no visible threats in the short  and medium term in the sponge iron industry. However avai labi li ty of key raw
materials and environmental concerns might pose significant challenge in the future.

Outlook

The domestic consumption story is positive as is evident in the demand pull visible in automobile and other sectors. Government is also
driving the economy by investing in housing, roads, and ports and in other infrastructure projects.

Favourable domestic demand and remunerative prices in both domestic and international markets are likely to bolster steel production
further in the years to come, resulting into more demand for sponge iron.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

Production of sponge iron during the year was 1,50,721 MT as compared to 1,57,065 MT as compared in the previous year. Production
of Ferro Chrome was 11,260 MT as compared to 12,264 MT in the previous year.

Accordingly, sales for sponge iron during the year was 1,52,906 MT as compared to 1,56,939.75 MT in the previous year. Sales of Ferro
Chrome during the year were 11,589 MT as compared to 12,408.95 MT in the previous year.

Company has a power generation plant of 40 MW. During the year 98,318.37 MWH of power was sold by way of Captive Consumption
as against 99,660.25  MWH in the previous year.

During the year under review Total Revenue from operation has been increased from ` 39,939.90 lacs to ` 51,136.81 lacs as compared
to previous year's turnover. Company has registered a net profit  of ` 4,239.07 lacs in comparison of profi t  of ` 87.68 lacs during
previous year.

OUTLOOK

The domestic consumption story is positive as is evident in the demand pull visible in automobile and other sectors. Government is also
driving the economy by investing in housing, roads, and ports and in other infrastructure projects. Favourable domestic demand and
remunerat ive prices in both domestic and international markets are likely to bolster steel product ion further in the years to come,
resulting into more demand for sponge iron.

RISK AND CONCERNS

The process of Risk Management in the company identifies inherent risks in its operations and records residual risk after taking specific
risk mitigat ion steps. The company has ident ified and categorized risks in the areas of Operations, Finance, Market ing, Regulatory
Compliances and Corporate matter.

The volatili ty in price of sponge iron, excess supply of sponge iron in the market will have an effect of squeezing margins and poses
risk to the profitabili ty. New customers, new market and cost reduction have been ident ified as the mitigation measures.

Also, the enforcement of recent Tariff policy guidelines on power by Government of India that requires the State Electricity Regulatory
Commission to ascertain sale price of power based on cost of generation will have an impact on the revenue from export of power.

Fluctuation of import coal price, increase in USD-INR exchange rate, may lead to increase in cost of production. This is mitigated by
continuous evaluation of international coal price vis-à-vis Indian coal price and accordingly the action plan for procurement has been
formulated.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND ITS ADEQUACY

The Company has adequate internal control procedures commensurate with its size and nature of its business. The objectives of these
procedures are to ensure efficient use and protection of the Company's resources, accuracy in financial statements and due compliance
of statutes and Company's policies and procedures.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The Company is working on enhancing its competencies to take care of current and future business. I ts employee strength as on March
31, 2018 was 410. Human Resource and I ndustrial Relat ions departments have developed systems and policies on recrui tment ,
performance management, learning and development, and employee engagement. The Workers union of the Company has maintained
healthy and cordial industrial relations, and has been an equal partner in implementing Company's policies and achieving stretched
operat ional targets, year on year.

CAUTIONARY NOTE

Cautionary Statement The above Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's objectives, projections, estimates and
expectations may be "forward looking statements" within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results could
differ materially from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a difference to the Company's operations include
external economic conditions affecting demand/ supply influencing price conditions in the market in which the Company operates, changes
in Government regulat ions, tax laws, and other incidental factors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of
S.A.L. STEEL LIMITED
AHMEDABAD

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying  Ind AS Financial Statements of M/ s SAL STEEL LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss, (including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income) ,the
Statement of Cash flows, the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information. (herein after referred to as " Ind AS financial statements").

Management 's Responsibi li ty for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with
respect to the preparat ion of these  Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India.

This responsibi li ty also includes maintenance of adequate account ing records in accordance with the provisions of the Act  for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularit ies; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies making judgments and est imates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibi li ty

Our responsibili ty is to express an opinion on these  Ind AS Financial Statements based on our audit .

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and audit ing standards and matters which are required to be
included in the audit  report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit of the  Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Audit ing, as specified under Section
143(10) of the Act . Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit  to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the  Financial Statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the  Ind
AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial
control relevant to the Company's preparation of the  Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the account ing est imates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluat ing the overall
presentat ion of the  Ind AS Financial Statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on
the  Ind AS Financial Statements.

BASIS OF QUALIFIED OPINION

1. Management is of  the view that they do not ant icipate execut ion of i ts ongoing capital projects.  However,  the  Company
has  not   made  adequate  provi sion t owards recovery  of  advances f or t he said capi t al  proj ect s f or t he amount  of
Rs.9,12,32,064/ - which  are  current ly  shown   under  Long  term  loans  and advances. The consequent ial  impact  of
adj ustment . i f  any, on t he actual  real i zat i on of  sai d   advances   on   t he   f i nancial    resul t s   i s   current ly  not
ascertai nable.  Therefore, we are unable t o comment  on i t s consequent ial  f i nancial  impact , i f  any, on t he f inancial
statements. (Refer Note No 35 - of  Notes forming Part of  IND AS Financial statement)

2. The Company has not assessed the impact of Effective Interest Method to the f inance cost as per the requirement of lnd AS
109 'Financial Instruments’ and hence, the effect of the same, i f    any, on the f inancial results is not ident i f iable therefore,
we are unable to comment upon i ts impact on the Financial results for the year ended 31st March, 2018. (Refer Note No 37-
of  Notes forming Part  of  IND AS Financial statement)

Quali f ied Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the possible effects of the
matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph the aforesaid   Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required
by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2018, and its Profits , total comprehensive income, the changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.
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OTHER MATTER

The Comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended 31st March 17  and the transition date opening -- balance
sheet as at 1 Apri l, 2016 included  in these standalone Ind AS financial statements, are based on the previously issued statutory
financial statements prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by predecessor auditors
and their  reports for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 dated 27th May 2017 and  30th May,2016 respect ively
expressed an unmodified opinion on those  financial statements, as adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles adopted
by the Company on transition to the Ind AS, which have been audited by us.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

EMPHASIS MATTER

1. Note 31 to the IND AS f inancial Statements of the Company which states that the Company's current liabi li t ies exceeded its
current assets as at the previous year balance sheet date. These condit ions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
that may cast signi ficant doubt about the Company's abili ty to cont inue as a going concern. However, considering the prof i t
earned by the company for the year ended on 31st March 2018 and considering the view of the management, the f inancial
results of the Company have been prepared on a " going concern basis" .

2. Note 32 to the IND AS  financial statements which describes about the Non disclosure of Reportable Segments as required
under Indian Accounting Standard - 108 'Operat ing Segments'. As IND AS 108 Operat ing Segments mandates the disclosure
requirements there is no impact on the f inancial results due to non disclosure.

3. Note no 40 to the Financial statements about the settlement agreement entered in to by the company with effect from 22nd
February 2018 for the enti re dues in respect of various faci li t ies and assistance provided by Union bank of India,State Bank
of  Saurashtra, State Bank of  India and State Bank of Hyderabad which is now assigned to Invent  Assets Securi t izat ion &
Reconstruct ion Pvt. Ltd. The company has accounted for the Waiver of Interest portion (as per the books of the company) as
Income in the statement  of  Prof i t  and loss.The said agreements provides for the set t lement  of  ent i re dues in respect of
f inancial assistance and faci li t ies with the underlying Securi t ies for the payment of Rs 18051.50 lacs towards full and f inal
set t lement  against  the total  l i abi l i t y (Principal and Interest )  of  Rs 24430 lacs result ing in to the waiver of  l i abi l i t y
(Principal and Interest as per the books of  the company  )  for the amount of  Rs 6378.26 lacs. The said waiver of  liabi li ty
(Interest) for the amount of Rs 6378.26 has been shown as income in the Statement of Profit and loss and has been reflected
as an Except ional I tem in the Statement  of Prof i t  and loss for the year ended on 31st March 2018.

4. Refer Note 42 to the notes forming part of f inancial statements which mentions about the Order of Hon'ble National Company
Law Tribunal (NCLT) , Ahmedabad Bench dated 6th Sep,  2017 [ C P ( IB)  no. 94/ 9/ NCLT/ AHM/ 2017]   which  had  admit ted
the company under  Corporate  Insolvency  Resolution  Process (CIRP) under section 9(5)( i)  of  the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 and accordingly appointed Interim Resolut ion Professional ( IRP).However, on the basis of the records produced
before us, and as explained to us,the promoters of the company have entered in to a set t lement with operat ional credi tor
who had fi led applicat ion before Hon'ble NCLT,Ahmedabad and obtained no object ion from other operational creditors as well
as f inancial credi tors and moved a peti t ion under Art icle 142 of the Const itution of India before the Hon'ble Supreme Court
of India, New Delhi . As per the order dated 10th January 2018 of the Hon'ble Supreme court of  India, the order passed by
the Hon'ble NCLT, Ahmedabad dated 06th September,2017 has been set aside and accordingly the CIRP proceedings have
been ef fect ively discont inued and powers of the Board of Directors of the Company have been reinstated.

5. Attent ion is invited to Note 41 of the  Financial Statements which states that the balance conf i rmat ion from the suppliers,
customers as well  as to various loans or advances given have been called for, but  the same are awai ted t i l l  the date of
audit . Thus, the balances of receivables, trade payables as well as loans and advances have been taken as per the books of
accounts submitted by the company and are subject to   conf i rmation from the respect ive part ies

6. Attention is invited to Note 42 of the  Financial Statements In view of the fact that the company against whom an application
for Corporate Insolvency Resolut ion Process (CIRP) has been admit ted under the Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code 2016 vide
order of  the National Company Law Tribunal Ahmedabad dated 06th Septemeber,2017 [ CP( IB)  No.94/ 9/ NCLT/ AHM/ 2017]
u/ s 9 of  the IBC 2016 and in  l ine wi th the press release of  the CBDT dated 06th Janudary,2018, whi le comput ing the
l i abi l i t y of  MAT u/ s 115JB of  t he I ncome Tax Act  t he amount  of  t otal  loss brought  forward ( i ncluding unabsorbed
depreciat ion)  has been allowed to be reduced f rom the book prof i t  for the year under review.

Our opinion is not qualified on the above matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central Government of India in terms
of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure-"A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order.

2. As required by Sect ion 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and, except for the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, obtained all the
information and explanat ions which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

(b) Except for the possible effects of the mat ter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our



ANNUAL REPORT 2017-201838

S.A.L. STEEL LIMITED

opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as i t  appears from our
examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt  with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) The matter described  under the Emphasis of Matters paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on
the functioning of the Company.

(e) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant Rules issued there under.

(f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2018 taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2018 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Sect ion 164 (2) of the Act.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effect iveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in "Annexure B".

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending lit igations on its financial position in its Financial Position as
referred to in Note no.30 to the  Ind AS Financial Statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company.

For Parikh & Majmudar
                                                      Chartered Accountants

                                                      FR No. 107525W

                                                      [ C.A ( Dr)  Hi ten M. Pari kh]
Place: Ahmedabad                                                       PARTNER
Date: 30/ 05/ 2018                                 Membership No. 40230
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ANNEXURE A - TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT
REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH " REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENT OF  OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO

THE MEMBERS OF S.A.L  STEEL  LIMITED

( i)     In respect of  i ts f ixed assets:
(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed

assets on the basis of available information.

(b) As explained to us, major portion of fixed assets are physically verified by the management during the year in accordance
with a phased program of verification adopted by company. In our  opinion, the frequency of verification   is  reasonable
having regard  to the size of the Company and nature of i ts assets. As informed to us, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such physical verification.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of records of the company,
t it le deeds of the immovable propert ies held are in the name of the company.

(ii) As explained to us, inventories(excluding goods in transit  and goods lying at port) were physically verified by management at
reasonable intervals during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of the verification is reasonable. The discrepancies noticed
on verification between the physical stocks and the book records were not material.

(iii) In respect of loans, Secured or unsecured granted by the company to the companies, firms, limited liability partnership or other
parties covered in the register maintained u/ s 189 of the companies Act, 2013:

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of records produced before us, the company has not
granted any loan, secured or unsecured to the companies, limited liability partnership or firms or other part ies covered in the
register maintained u/ s 189 of the companies Act,2013 and hence sub-clause (a)&(b) & (c) of paragraph 3 of companies auditor's
report  order 2016 are not applicable to the company.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not made any investment or given any loans during
the year under review Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the company pursuant  to the rules made by the Cent ral
Government of India for the maintenance of Cost records specified under section 148 of Companies Act 2013 and  are of the
opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts & records have been made and maintained. We have however, not made a
detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) :

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of examination of  the  records of the Company,
amounts deducted/  accured in the books of accounts in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, ESIC,
income-tax, sales tax, Goods & ServIce Tax, service tax, , duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other
statutory dues have not been generally regularly deposited during the year with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanation given to us  no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, ESIC,
income-tax,  Goods & ServIce Tax, service tax, , duty of customs, duty of excise,  cess and other statutory dues were resaid dues
were outstanding as at 31st March,2018 for a period of more than six months from the date of becoming payable except dues
for (1)  deferred sales tax liability for Rs.22.63 lacs  (2)  dues of value added tax (VAT)  during the year to the tune of
Rs.2240.56 lacs.-

b) On the basis of  records produced before us for our verification and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the details of disputed dues of Rs.2747.45 lacs/ - have not been deposited as on 31st March, 2018 on account of
matters pending before the appropriate authorit ies. The details of which are as follows:

Sr. 
No 

Name of the statue Nature of Dues Financial year  to 
which i t  relates 

From where the 
dispute is pending 

Amount under dispute 
not yet deposited 

 (Net of Payments )  
 (  in Rs lakhs.)  

1 Central Excise Act,1994 Central Excise 
Duty 

2006-07 Appellate Tribunal 
Ahmedabad 

5.56 

2 Central Excise Act,1994 Central Excise 
Duty 

2008-09 Appellate Tribunal 
Ahmedabad 

10.41 

3 Custom Act ,1962 Custom Duty  2011-12 Appellate Tribunal 
Ahmedabad 

50.00 

4 Central Excise Act,1994 Central Excise 
Duty 

2012-13 Appellate Tribunal 
Ahmedabad 

449.85 

5 Gujarat Value Added Tax 
Act,2003   

Value Added Tax 2006-07 Jt. Value Added Tax 
Commissioner (Appeal) 

365.64 

6 Central Excise Act,1994 Central Excise 
Duty 

2008-09 to 
2010-2011 

Supreme Court  590.14 

7 Central Service Tax Service Tax Duty 2009-10 Service Tax 25.55 
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(viii) According to information & explanat ions given to us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of its dues to  Financial
Inst itutions. The company does not have any borrowings from debenture holders, Banks  or Government

(ix) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and term
loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable.

(x) According to the information and explanat ions given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company by i ts officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

(xi)  According to the information and explanat ions give to us and based on our examinat ion of the records of the Company, the
Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions
of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) According to the informat ion and explanat ions given to us and based on our examinat ion of the records of the Company,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(Xiv)  According to the information and explanat ions given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during
the year.

(xv) According to the information and explanat ions given to us and based on our examinat ion of the records of the Company, the
Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv)
of the Order is not applicable.

  For Parikh & Majmudar
                                                      Chartered Accountants

                                                      FR No. 107525W

                                                      [ C.A ( Dr)  Hi ten M. Pari kh]
Place: Ahmedabad                                                       PARTNER
Date: 30/ 05/ 2018                                 Membership No. 40230

Duty 2010-2011 
7 Central Service Tax 

Act,1994 
Service Tax Duty 2009-10 Service Tax 

Commissioner 
25.55 

8 Central Excise Act,1994 Central Excise 
Duty 

2005-06 to sep 
2014 

Central Excise 
Commissioner 

626.28 

10 Gujarat Value Added Tax 
Act,2003   

Value Added Tax 2011-12 Jt. Value Added Tax 
Commissioner (Appeal) 

220.12 

11 Gujarat Value Added Tax 
Act,2003   

Value Added Tax 2013-14 Jt. Value Added Tax 
Commissioner (Appeal) 

253.70 
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OFF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
S.A.L STEEL LIMITED

Report  on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Report ing under Clause ( i )  of  Sub-sect ion 3 of  Sect ion 143 of  the
Companies Act, 2013 (" the Act" )

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial report ing of M/ s S.A.L STEEL LIMITED ("the Company") as of 31 March
2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.
Management 's Responsibi li ty for Internal Financial Controls
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI ').
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevent ion and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.
Auditor's' Responsibili ty
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance
Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.
We believe that the audit  evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit  opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Report ing
A company's internal financial control over financial report ing is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizat ions of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or t imely detection of unauthorized acquisit ion, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.
Inherent  Limitat ions of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Report ing
Because of the inherent limitat ions of internal financial controls over financial report ing, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management  override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not  be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial report ing may become inadequate because of changes in condit ions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion
In our opinion, to the best of our information & according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects,
an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31st March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essent ial components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit  of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Parikh & Majmudar
                                                      Chartered Accountants

                                                      FR No. 107525W

                                                       [ C.A (Dr)  Hi ten M. Pari kh]
Place: Ahmedabad             PARTNER
Date: 30/ 05/ 2018                                   Membership No. 40230
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Sr. Part iculars Note No. As At As At As At
No.  31.03.2018 31.03.2017 31.03.2016

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018
(Amount ` in Lacs)

ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2  12,770.03  13,274.25  13,974.61
b) Capital work-in-progress  2,470.25  2,470.25  2,470.25
c) Other Intangible assets  5.77  5.77  5.77
d) Financial Assets  -  -  -
(i) Trade receivables 3  268.01  351.50  278.81
(ii) Loans 4  12.63  12.34  7.50
(iii) Security Deposits
e) Deferred tax assets (net)  -  592.30  864.10
f) Other non-current assets 5  950.00  988.71  1,143.15
2) Current assets  -  -  -
a) Inventories 6  7,603.33  6,020.33  2,920.15
b) Financial Assets  -  -  -
(i) Trade receivables 7  3,469.64  5,029.03  3,759.61
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 8  241.86  123.67  111.23
(iii) Bank balances other than (iii) above
(iv) Loans
c) Other current assets 9  407.85  683.81  354.73

TOTAL ASSETS  28,199.37  29,551.96  25,889.91
EQUITY & LIABILITIES :
EQUITY:

a) Equity Share capital 10  8,496.67  8,496.67  8,496.67
b) Other Equity 11  -8,117.50  -12,372.52  -12,465.12

LIABILITIES :  -  -  -
1) Non-Current Liabi li t ies  -  -  -
a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 12  16,729.44  16,895.77  16,141.49
(iii) Other financial liabilit ies 13  546.32  363.80  375.40
b) Provisions 14  84.86  84.48  77.44
c) Deferred tax liabilit ies (Net)  1,573.21  -  -
d) Other non-current liabilit ies 15  67.89  90.52  113.15
2) Current liabi l i t ies  -  -  -
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Trade payables 16  2,362.52  2,880.09  2,054.00
(iii) Other financial liabilit ies 17  758.60  8,609.38  8,497.92
(iv) Other current liabilities 18  5,619.81  4,430.23  2,517.33
c) Provisions 19  77.55  73.54  81.63

Total Equity and Liabi l i t ies  28,199.37  29,551.96  25,889.91

The accompanying Notes 1 to 53 are integral part of these Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date attached.

For Parikh & Majmudar
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn.No.107525W)

CA Dr. Hiten Parikh
Partner
Membership No.040230
PLACE :  AHMEDABAD
DATE   :  30th May,2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rajendra V. Shah Chairman

B M Singhal Whole Time Director Cum CFO

Anil Pandya Whole Time Director

Nirajkumar Jain Company Secretary
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Note As At As At
No 31st March 2018 31st March 2017

Statement of Prof i t  & Loss for the year ended on March 31, 2018
(Amount ` in Lacs)

I Revenue from Operations 20 50865.43 39702.93

II Other Income 21 271.38 236.97

III Total Income ( I  +II) 51136.81 39939.90

IV Expenses:

Cost of Materials Consumed 22 33895.67 24029.98

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 23 1210.23

Changes in Inventories of Finished goods, Stock-in-Trade and
Work-in-progress 24 -2290.26 -274.48

Excise duty 25 963.00 3641.77

Employee Benefits Expense 26 1399.29 1278.43

Finance Costs 27 115.70 73.06

Depreciation and Amortization Expense 775.00 764.23

Other Expenses 28 15050.41 10069.62

Total Expenses ( IV) 51119.04 39582.61

V Prof i t  before Except ional I tem  (  I I I - IV ) 17.77 357.29

Exceptional I tem (Refer Note No 40 ) 6378.26 0.00

VI Prof i t  before tax (  I I I - IV ) 6396.03 357.29

VII Tax expense : 29

 (1) Current Tax 0.00 0.00

 (2) Deferred Tax 2156.95 269.60

Total Tax Expenses (VI I) 2156.95 269.60

VIII Prof i t  for the period (V -VI) 4239.08 87.69

IX Other Comprehensive Income

A (i) I tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 0.00 0.00

B (i) I tems that will be reclassified to profit or loss 24.52 7.11

   (ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss -8.57 -2.20

Total Other Comprehensive Income (VII I) 15.95 4.91

X Total Comprehensive Income for the period (VI I  + VII I)
(Comprising Prof i t  and Other Comprehensive Income for the period) 4255.03 92.60

XI Earnings per equi ty share (Face Value of   ` 10/ - each) 30 4.99 0.10

Basic & Diluted (In Rs)

The accompanying Notes 1 to 53 are integral part of these Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date attached.

For Parikh & Majmudar
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn.No.107525W)

CA Dr. Hiten Parikh
Partner
Membership No.040230
PLACE :  AHMEDABAD
DATE   :  30th May,2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rajendra V. Shah Chairman

B M Singhal Whole Time Director Cum CFO

Anil Pandya Whole Time Director

Nirajkumar Jain Company Secretary
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2018
(Pursuant to the Listing Regulations)

(Amount ` in Lacs)

(A)  CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
NET PROFIT/ (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 6,396.03 357.28
Add/ (Less) :
Depreciation and amortization expense 775.00 764.23

Debit / (Credit) Balance written off -60.48 -97.86

Unrealised Foreign Exchange Loss/  (Gain) 74.95 30.37

Financial Cost 115.70 73.06

Bad Debts /  (Bad Debts recovered) 0 0.04

Provision for Doubtful Debts and Advances 10.04 10.04

Interest Income -4.92 910.29 -1.05 778.83

7,306.32 1,136.11
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES
Adjustments for:

Trade and Other Receivables 1,957.27 -1,521.59

Inventories -1,583.01 -3,100.18

Trade Payables and other liabilit ies -6,991.86 -6,617.60 2,902.32 -1,719.44

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 688.72 -583.34
Less: Income Tax Paid 0

CASH FLOW BEFORE EXTRA ORDINARY ITEMS 688.72 -583.34
Add /  (Less):

Prior period items 0

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 688.72 -583.34

(B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
   Sale Proceeds of Assets

   Interest Income 4.92 1.05

   Purchase of Fixed Assets -270.79 -63.86

   Investment in Capital Work in Progress 0.00 0.00

NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) -265.87 -62.81

(C)  CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from Working Capital Loans -166.33 754.28

Financial Expense -115.70 -73.06

Proceeds /  (Repayment) from /  to Loans and Advances -22.63 -22.63

NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) -304.66 658.59

NET INCREASE /  DECREASE IN CASH & CASH
EQUIVALENTS(A+B+C) 118.19 12.44

Cash & Cash Equivalent in the Beginning of the year 123.67 111.23

Cash & Cash Equivalent in the Closing of the year 241.86 123.67

Part iculars               2017-18     2016-17
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Note:
Cash and Bank Balances: As At As At

March 31,2018 March 31,2017
Balances with banks(in Current Accounts) 240.40 121.62

Cash on Hand 1.46 2.05

Total 241.86 123.67

The accompanying Notes 1 to 53 are integral part of these Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date attached.

For Parikh & Majmudar
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn.No.107525W)

CA Dr. Hiten Parikh
Partner
Membership No.040230
PLACE :  AHMEDABAD
DATE   :  30th May,2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rajendra V. Shah Chairman

B M Singhal Whole Time Director Cum CFO

Anil Pandya Whole Time Director

Nirajkumar Jain Company Secretary
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Notes to f inancial statement  for the year ended 31 March 2018
A. DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1 CORPORATE INFORMATION
The Company is a Public Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. I ts
shares are listed on National Stock Exchange and Bombay Stock Exchange.The company is engaged in manufacturing Sponge
I ron, Ferro Alloys and power and the same are sold in the domestic market . Because of the Captive power generat ion,
company has advantage of low power cost per unit of manufacturing. Company is generating 40 MW Power from waste Heat
recovery Boiler & Fluidized Bed Combustion boiler with economic price. Power generated is used for captive consumption and
sur-plus power is sold resulting profit.

1.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. The Financial Statements up to year ended 31 March  2017  were
prepared in accordance with accounting standards notified under the Company (Accounting Standards)  Rules  2006 read with
Rule 7(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to
as the 'previous GAAP').
These Financial Statements are the first financial statements of the company under Ind AS - the transition date being1st April
2016. The information as to how the company has adopted Ind AS and the impact thereof on Company's financial position,
financial performance and cash flows is presented in notes to financial statements.
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis.
Accounting policies have been consistently  applied   except   where a newly issued  accounting  standard is initially adopted
or  a  revision  to an exist ing  accounting standard requires a  change in  the  account ing policy hi therto in use. The
Company's management evaluates all recently issued or revised accounting standards on an on-going basis.
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR'). Where changes are made in presentation, the comparative
figures   of   the   previous year are regrouped and re-arranged accordingly.

1.3 Use of  Est imates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make est imates and assump-tions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilit ies and disclosure of cont ingent
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting year end. Although these
estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these
est imates.

1.4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:
i) Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at original cost  (net of  tax/ dutycreditavailed)less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses. Cost includes cost of acquisit ion, construction and installation, taxes, duties, freight, other incidental
expenses related to  the  acquisit ion, and pre-operative expenses including attributable borrowing costs incurred during pre-
operational period.

ii) Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic  benefits  associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other
repairs and maintenance  are  charged to profit and loss during the report ing period in which they are incurred.

iii) Assets which are not ready for their intended  use  on  report ing  date  are carried as capital work-in-progress at  cost,
comprising direct cost and related incidental expenses.

iv) On transi t ion to I nd AS, the Company has elected to cont inue with the carrying value of all of i ts property, plant and
equipment as at 1st Apri l 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the
property, plant and equipment .

v) Property, Plant and Equipment  are depreciated and/ or amort ised on the basis of their useful lives as notified in Schedule
I I  to the Companies Act, 2013. The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

vi) Depreciat ion in respect  of  additions to assets has been charged on pro rata basis with reference to the period when the
assets are ready for use.

vii) An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately on  discontinuation to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying
amount  is greater than its est imated recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in Profit /  Loss on Sale and Discard of Fixed Assets.

viii) Useful lives of the Property, Plant and Equipment as notified in Schedule I I  to the Companies Act, 2013 are as follows :
Buildings - 3 to 60 years
Plant and Equipments - 15 to 25 years
Furniture and Fixtures - 10 years
Vehicles - 8 to 10 years
Office Equipments - 5 to 10 years

ix) At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amount of  property,  plant   and   equipment to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment loss. I f any such indication exists, the recoverable amount  of  the   assets
is   estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss. The recoverable amount is higher of the net selling price
and the value in use, determined by discounting the estimated future cash flows expected from the continuing use of the
asset to their present value.

1.5 INTANGIBLE ASSETS:
i) Intangible assets acquired by payment e.g. Computer Software are  disclosed  at  cost  less amort ization  on  a  straight-

line  basis over its est i-mated useful life.
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ii) Intangible assets are carried at cost, net of accumulated amortization and impairment loss, if any.
iii) On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangible assets as at 1st

April  2016  measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as  the deemed cost  of the intangible assets.
iv) Intangible assets are amort ised on straight-line method as follows :

Computer Software - 5 years
v) At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amount of intangible assets to determine whether there is

any indication of impair-ment loss. I f any such indication exists, the recoverable  amount of the assets is estimated in order
to determine the extent of impairment loss. The recoverable amount is higher of the net selling price and the value in use,
determined by discounting the estimated future cash flows expected from the continuing use of the asset to their present
value.

1.6 Revenue Recognit ion
i) Revenue comprises of all economic benefits that arise in the ordinary course of act ivit ies of the Company which result in

increase in Equity, other than increases relating to contributions from equity participants. Revenue is recognized to the extent
that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue
is measured at the fair value of the considerat ion received or receivable.

ii) Sale  of  Goods:  Revenue   from   sales of  goods  is   recognized   on   transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership
to the customers. Revenue shown in the Statement of Profit and Loss are inclusive of Excise Duty upto 30th June 2017 and
the value of self-consumption, but excludes, returns, trade discounts, cash discounts, value added tax, central sales tax.
Excise Duty expense has been disclosed in Statement of Profit  and Loss as expenditure.

iii) Services: Revenue from Services are recognized as and when the  services are rendered.
iv) Interest: Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest

rate applicable.
v) Export Benefits are accounted on accrual basis.
vi) Dividend income is recognized when right to receive is established.

1.7 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:
i) Short-term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at the undis-counted amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss

of the year in which the related service is rendered.
ii) Post Employment and Retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity  are considered as defined benefit  obligat ions and is

provided for on the basis of third party actuarial valuation, using the projected unit  credit  method, as at the date of the
Balance Sheet. Every Employee who has completed five years or more of service is entit led to Gratuity on terms not less
favorable than the provisions of The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

iii) The present value of the defined benefit  obligat ion is determined by discount ing the est imated future cash outflows by
reference to market yields at the end of reporting period on government bonds that have terms ap-proximating to the terms
of the related obligation.

iv) Employee benefi ts in the form of Provident  Fund is considered as defined contribut ion plan and the contribut ions to
Employees' Provident Fund Organization established under The Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act
1952 is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the contributions to  the  respective   funds  are   due.
The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. The Company
has no further payment obligations once  the  contributions have been paid.

1.8 Valuat ion of  Inventories
i) The cost of inventories have been computed to include all cost of purchases, cost of conversion and other related costs

incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condit ion. The costs of Raw Materials, Stores and spare
parts etc., consumed consist of purchase price including duties and taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable by the
enterprise from the taxing authorit ies), freight inwards and other expenditure directly attributable to the procurement.

ii) Stock of Raw Materials are valued at cost and of those in transit and at port related to these items are valued at cost to
date.Goods  and  materials in transit are valued at actual cost incurred upto the date of balance sheet. Material and supplies
held for use  in the production of inventories are not written down if the finished products in which they will be used are
expected to be sold at or above cost.

iii) Stock of Stores and spare parts are valued at cost; and of those in transit and at port related to these items are valued at
cost.

iv) Goods-in-process is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value.
v) Stock of Finished goods is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value.
vi) Stock-in-trade is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value.

1.9 Cash f low statement
Cash flows are reported using indirect method,  whereby  profit  before  tax  is ad-justed for the effects of transactions of a non-
cash nature and any deferrals or ac-cruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flow from regular reve-nue
generating, financing and investing activit ies of the Company is segregated.
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet  comprise cash at bank, cash/ cheques in hand and short term investments with
an original maturity of three months or less.

1.10FINANCIALASSETS:
i) The Company classif ies i ts f inancial assets as those to be measured subsequent ly at  fair value (either through other

comprehensive income, or through profit  or loss), and those to be measured at amortised cost.
ii) Trade receivables represent  receivables for goods sold by  the  Company  upto to   the end of the financial year. The

amounts are generally unsecured and are usually received as per the terms of payment agreed with the customers.The
amounts are presented as current assets where receivable is due within12 months from the report ing date.

iii) Trade receivables are impaired using the lifetime expected credit loss model under simplified approach. The Company   uses
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a   matrix to de-termine the impairment loss allowance based on its historically observed default rates over expected li fe
of trade receivables and is adjusted for for-ward  looking  est imates.  At  every  report ing  date,  the  impairment  loss
allowance is determined and updated and the same is deducted from Trade Receivables with corresponding charge/ credit to
Profit and Loss.

iv) A financial asset is derecognized only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive cashflows from the financial
asset,or when it has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or when it has transferred the control
of the asset.

1.11 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:
i) Borrowings are removed from balance sheet  when the obligat ion speci fied in the   contract is discharged, cancelled or

expired.
ii) Borrowings are classified as current liabili t ies unless the company has an uncondit ional right to defer sett lement of the

liabili ty for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
iii) Trade Payables represent liabilit ies for goods and services provided to the Company upto to the end of the financial year.

The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid as per the terms of payment agreed with the vendors. The amounts are
presented as current liabilit ies unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised
init ially and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

iv) Financial assets and Financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable  legal  right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the
assets and sett le the liabilit ies simultaneously.

1.12  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT:
i) Fair  value  is  the   price   that   would be received to sell  an  asset  or  paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction

between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that  the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes   place   either   in   the   principal market for the asset or liability,
or in the absence of a principal market,  in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

ii) The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liabili ty, as-suming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

iii) A fair value measurement of a non- financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by  using  the  asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market partici-pant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

iv) The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the cir-cumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure  fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

1.13 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS:
i) The Company's  financial  statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR'), which is also the Company's functional currency.
ii) Foreign currency transactions are recorded  on   init ial   recognition   in the functional currency, using the exchange rate at

the date of the transact ion. At each balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing
exchange rate. Exchange differences that  arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting at each balance sheet date
of the Company's monetary items at the closing rate are recognized as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

iii) Non-monetary items which are carried at   historical   cost   denominated   in   foreign currency  are  reported  using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
usingthe exchange rate at the date when the fair value is determined.

1.14 BORROWIN GCOSTS:
i) Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differ-ences relating to foreign currency borrowings to the

extent that they are regarded as an adjustmentto interest costs) incurred in  connection with the borrowing of funds.
ii) General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are

capitalized as part  of the cost of such assets  during  the  period of t ime that is required to  complete and prepare the
asset for i ts intended use. A qualifying asset is one that takes necessari ly substant ial period of t ime to get ready for its
intended use.

iii) All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
1.15 ACCOUNTING FOR TAXES ON INCOME:

i) Tax expenses comprise of current tax and deferred tax including applicable surcharge and cess.
ii) Current Income tax is computed using the tax effect accounting method, where taxes are accrued in the same period in

which the related revenue and expenses arise. A provision is made for income tax annually, based on the tax liabi li ty
computed, after considering tax allowances and exemptions. Provisions are recorded when it is estimated that a liability due
to disallowances or other matters is probable.

iii) Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax
bases of assets and liabilit ies and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.Deferred tax
liabilit ies are recognized for all taxable tempo-rary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible tem-
porary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any un used tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits against which the deductible temporary differences,and the carry forward
un used tax credits and un used tax losses can be uti lized.

iv) The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that  sufficient  taxable profi t  wi ll be avai lable to allow all or part  of the deferred tax assets to be ut i lized.
Unrecognized  deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it is become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred taxasset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilit ies are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is setled,based
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on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or sub-stantively enacted at the report ing date.
v) Deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other

comprehensive income. As such, deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income.
vi) Deferred  Tax  Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilit ies are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets

against current tax lia-bili t ies and the Deferred Tax Assets and DeferredTax Liabilit ies   relate to taxes on income levied by
same governing taxat ion laws.

1.16        PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS:
i) Provisions are made when (a) the Company has a present legal or constructive  obligation as a result  of past  events; (b)

it is  probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and (c)
a reliable est imate is made of the amount of the obligat ion.

ii) Contingent liabilit ies are not provided for but are disclosed by way of Notes on Accounts. Contingent liabilit ies is disclosed
in case of a present obligation from past events (a) when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation;(b)when no reliable esti-mate is possible;(c)unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote.

iii) Contingent assets are not accounted but disclosed by way of Notes on Accounts where the inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

1.17CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT CLASSIFICATION:
i) The Normal Operat ing Cycle for the Company has  been  assumed to be of twelve months for classificat ion of i ts various

assets and liabilit ies into "Current" and "Non-Current".
ii) The Company presents assets and liabili t ies in the balance sheet based on current and non-current classification.
iii) An asset is current when it is (a) expected to be  realized  or  intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

(b) held primarily for the purpose of trading; (c) expected to be realized within twelve months after the report ing period;
(d) Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period. All other assets are classified as non-current.

iv) An liability is current when (a) it is expected to be settled in normal operat-ing cycle; (b) it is held primarily for the purpose
of trading; (c) it is due to be discharged within twelve months after the reporting  period;  (d)  there is no unconditional right
to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. All other liabilities are classified
as non-current.

1.18 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:
i) A related party is a person or  ent ity that is  related to the reporting entity preparing its financial statements

(a) A person or a close member of that person's family is related to report-ing ent ity i f that person;
(i) has control or joint control of the reporting entity;
(ii) has significant influence over the reporting entity;or
(i ii) is amember of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the report ing ent ity.

(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies;
(i) the entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (whichmeans that each parent,subsidiary and

fellow subsidiary is re-lated to the others);
(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a

group of which the other entity is a member);
(iii) Both ent it ies are joint ventures of the same third party;
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity;
(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit  plan for the benefit of em-ployees of either the report ing entity or an

entity related to the report-ing entity;
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a  person  identified in(a);
(vii) A person identified in(a)

(i) Has significant influence over the entity or is a member of thekey management personnel of the entity(or of
a parent of the entity);

(vi i i)The ent ity, or any member of a group of which it  is a part , provides key management personnel services to the
reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity.

ii) A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obliga-tions between a reporting entity and a related party,
regardless of whether a price is charged.
Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings  with the entity.
Compensation includes all employee benefits i .e. all forms of consideration paid, payable or provided by the ent ity, or on
behalf of the ent ity, in exchange for services rendered to the entity. I t also includes such consideration  paid on behalf of
a parent of the entity in respect of the ent ity.
Key  management  personnel  are those persons having authority and re-sponsibility for planning,  directing and controlling
the activit ies of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity.

iii) Disclosure of related party transact ions as required by the account ing standard is furnished in the Notes on Financial
Statements.

1.19EARNINGS PER SHARE:
i) Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders

by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
ii) For the purpose of calculat ing di luted earnings per share, the net profi t  or loss for the period at t ributable to equity

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.
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Note 2(a) : Fixed Assets
TANGIBLE ASSETS : (Amount ` in Lacs)

Particulars Freehold Bui lding Plant Furni ture Vehicles Office Computer TOTAL
Land and and Equipments

Machinery Fixtures
Cost of  Assets
As at 1st Apri l 2016 669.30 4431.32 24762.18 61.96 1020.80 43.75 100.75 31090.06
Addit ion 61.26 0.00 1.54 0.00 0.00 0.25 0.81 63.86
Disposal/ Adjustments 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
As at 31st March 2017 730.56 4431.32 24763.72 61.96 1020.80 44.00 101.56 31153.92
Addit ion 0.00 0.00 236.97 0.00 30.74 1.45 1.63 270.78
Disposal/ Adjustments
As at 31st March 2018 730.56 4431.32 25000.69 61.96 1051.54 45.45 103.19 31424.79
Depreciation
As at 1st Apri l 2016 0.00 1462.79 14661.63 57.78 800.51 37.21 95.53 17115.44
Charge for the year 137.14 558.42 1.08 65.08 2.11 0.40 764.24
Disposal/ Adjustments
As at 31st March 2017 0.00 1599.93 15220.05 58.86 865.59 39.32 95.93 17879.68
Charge for the year 137.15 588.55 0.00 46.67 1.41 1.23 775.01
Disposal/ Adjustments
As at 31st March 2018 0.00 1737.08 15808.60 58.86 912.26 40.73 97.16 18654.68
Net Block
As at 31st March 2017 730.57 2831.39 9543.67 3.10 155.21 4.67 5.64 13274.24
As at 31st March 2018 730.56 2694.24 9192.09 3.10 139.28 4.72 6.03 12770.03

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March 2018

INTANGIBLE ASSETS :
PARTICULARS SOFTWARE TOTAL
Cost of Assets
As at  1st  Apri l  2016 115.30 115.30
Addition 0.00 0.00
Disposal/ Adjustments 0.00 0.00
Other adjustment 0.00 0.00
As at  31st  March 2017 115.30 115.30
Addition 0.00 0.00
Disposal/ Adjustments 0.00 0.00
Other adjustment 0.00 0.00
As at  31st  March 2018 115.30 115.30
Depreciation
As at 1st April 2016 109.53 109.53
Charge for the year 0.00 0.00
Disposal/ Adjustments 0.00 0.00
As at  31st  March 2017 109.53 109.53
Charge for the year 0.00 0.00
Disposal/ Adjustments 0.00 0.00
As at  31st  March 2018 109.53 109.53
Net  Block
As at  31st  March 2016 5.77 5.77
As at  31st  March 2017 5.77 5.77

CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Building and Plant & Machinery   2,470   2,470

Total  2,470   2,470
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March 2018  (Amount ` in Lacs)

NOTE NO : 2& 2(a) As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017 As At  Apri l 01, 2016

Fixed assets :
(i) Property, Plant and Equipment 12,770.03 13,274.25 13,974.61

     (ii) Capital work-in-progress 2,470.25 2,470.25 2,470.25

     (ii i) Other Intangible assets 5.77 5.77 5.77

15,245.89 15,750.27 16,450.63

NOTE NO : 3 As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017 As At  Apri l 01, 2016

Fixed assets :
Trade Receivables :

Non-current  Trade Receivable
Unsecured,considered good 268.01 351.50 278.81

268.01 351.50 278.81

NOTE NO : 4 As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017 As At  Apri l 01, 2016

Loans :
- Loans to Staff 12.63 12.34 7.50

12.63 12.34 7.50

NOTE NO : 5 As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017 As At  Apri l 01, 2016

Other non-current assets :
(a)  Advance for Capital goods 912.32 912.32 941.22

Less : Provision made for doubtfull
advances 237.84 674.48 237.84 674.48 169.32 771.89

(b) Security Deposit
Unsecured,considered good 161.84 167.36 166.97

(c) Other Loan and advances
Unsecured,considered good 112.14 123.73 169.51

(d)   Advance Income Tax , TDS & TCS 1.54 23.13 34.78
950.00 988.71 1143.15

NOTE NO : 6 As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017 As At  Apri l 01, 2016

Inventories :
(As taken, valued & certif ied by a director)
(a) Raw Materials (Includes Material at
port ` 1065.4 Lacs / - P.Y. ` 2951.14 lacs) 3292.87 3900.01 947.00

  (b) Work in progress 507.69 89.41 19.62

  (c) Finished goods 2957.45 1095.65 891.26

  (d) Stores and spares 827.84 927.96 1055.27

  (e) By Product 17.48 7.30 7.00

7603.33 6020.33 2920.15



ANNUAL REPORT 2017-201852

S.A.L. STEEL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March 2018  (Amount ` in Lacs)

NOTE NO : 7 As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017 As At  Apri l 01, 2016
Trade receivables :
(i) Outstanding for a period exceeding

six months un Secured, considered good 298.16 351.50 278.81

(ii) Others un Secured, considered good 3171.48 4677.53 3480.80

TOTAL 3469.64 5029.03 3759.61
Trade Receivables includes ` 2560.86 lacs in CY and ` 4900.28 in PY from Associated concerns (i.e. Shah Alloys Ltd)  in which director
of a Company is interested.

NOTE NO : 8 As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017 As At  Apri l 01, 2016
Cash and cash equivalents
(a) Balances with Scheduled Banks

In current Account 240.40 121.62 77.16

(b) Margin Money with Scheduled Banks 0.00 0.00 27.10

(c) Cash on hand 1.46 2.05 6.97

241.86 123.67 111.23

NOTE NO : 9 As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017 As At  Apri l 01, 2016
Other current assets :
Balance with government authorities 110.54 123.35 97.58

Advance to Suppliers 292.30 552.69 255.23

Prepaid Expenses 5.01 7.77 1.92

407.85 683.81 354.73

NOTE NO : 10 As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017 As At  Apri l 01, 2016
Share Capital :
Authorised :
14,00,00,000 Equity Shares of ` 10/ - each
(Previous year : 14,00,00,000 Equity
Shares of ` 10/ - each) 14000.00 14000.00 14000.00

14000.00 14000.00 14000.00
Issued & Subscribed and Paid up :
8,49,66,700 Equity Shares of Rs.10/ - each
fully paid up “(Previous year : 8,49,66,700
Equity Shares of  Rs.10/ - each fully paid up) 8496.67 8496.67 8496.67

8496.67 8496.67 8496.67
The Authorised, issued, subscribed and fully paid up share capital comprises of equity shares having a par value of  ` 10/ - each as
follows:

a) Reconci liat ion of number of shares:

NOTE NO : 10 As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017
Equity Shares Number of Number of

shares ` in lacs shares ` in lacs
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 8,49,66,700 8,496.67  8,49,66,700 8,496.67

Changes during the Year -  -  -  -

Shares Outstanding at the end of the year  8,49,66,700 8,496.67  8,49,66,700 8,496.67
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b)   Terms/ rights, preferences and restrict ions attached to securi t ies:
Equity shares:
The company has one class of equity share having a par value of ` 10 each. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held.
The dividend proposed by the Board of directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual general meeting,
except in case of interim dividend. In the case of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of
the company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.
c)    Detai ls of  Shareholders holding more than 5% in the Company:

NOTE NO : 10 As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017
Equity Shares Number of Number of

shares % of Holding shares % of Holding
Shah Alloys Limited 3,02,56,989 35.61  3,02,56,989 35.61

SAL Care Pvt Limited 1,27,02,900 14.95  1,27,02,900 14.95

Total 4,29,59,889 50.56 4 29 59 889 50.56

NOTE NO : 11 As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017 As At  Apri l 01, 2016
Other Equity :
Securities Premium Account
Opening Balance 2,878.20 2878.20 2878.20
Add : Addition during the year 0.00

2,878.20 2,878.20 2878.20 2878.20 2878.20 2878.20
Capital Reserve 0.00 0.00
Opening Balance 800.00 800.00 800.00
Add : Addition during the year -  -  -

800.00 800.00 800.00 800.00 800.00 800.00
General Reserve
Opening Balance 5.11 5.11 5.11 5.11
Add : Addition during the year  -  - 5.11  - 5.11
Retained Earnings
Balance Brought Forward From Previous Year -16060.74 -16148.43 -12838.58
Adjustment as per IND AS
add Deferred tax adjustment due to indas  -  - 864.10
Less: Adjusment on account of Indas  -  - 1297.10

-16060.74 -16148.43 -13271.58
Add:  Profit/ (Loss) for the year 4239.06 87.69 -2876.85

-11821.68 -16060.74 -16148.43
-11821.68 -16060.74 -16148.43

Other Comprehensive Income
(a) Remeasurements of Defined

Benefit Plans (net of Tax)
Balance as per last Financial year -4.91 0.00
Add: For the Year -15.96
Closing Balance -20.87 -20.87 -4.91 -4.91 0.00 0.00

-8117.50 -12372.52 -12465.12

NOTE NO : 12 As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017 As At  Apri l 01, 2016
Borrowings :
(a) Loan (refer note 1 below)

Invent Assets Securitization &
Reconstruction Pvt. Ltd. 16729.44 16895.77 16141.49

16729.44 16895.70 16141.49

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March 2018  (Amount ` in Lacs)
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Secured Borrowings:
(a) Nature of securi ty and terms of repayment for secured borrowings:
(a) The above loan is secured by way of  Land Bearing Surevy no 243 & 245 situated at Bharpur , Taluka Gandhidham  District -

Kutch.Further Secured by way of all  movable assets  both present and future belonging to the company.

(b) Further secured by way of  personal guarantees of (i) Shri Rajendrabhai V. Shah  (ii) Smt. R.R. Shah ( iii) Shri Jayesh V. Shah  (iv)
and Corporate Guarantee of M/ s Shah Alloys Limited.

(c) Further secured by way of Pledge of 10756989 equity shares of Shah Alloys ltd pleged to Consortium members

Repayment Schedule
Name of ARC payable in payable in payable in payable in payable in

2018-19  2019-20 2020-21 2021-22  2022-23
Invent Assets Securi t ization & Reconstruct ion Pvt. Ltd. 722.06 722.06 1444.12 2166.18 12397.08

Total 722.06 722.06 1,444.12 2,166.18 12,397.08

As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017 As At  Apri l 01, 2016

NOTE NO : 13
Other f inancial liabi li t ies :

Current Non-Current Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
maturities Portion maturities Portion maturities Portion

(a) Trade Deposit from Customers 44.05 44.05 44.05

(b) Trade Payables 502.27 319.75 331.35

546.32 363.80 375.40

As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017 As At  Apri l 01, 2016

NOTE NO : 14
Long term provisions :
(a) Provision for Gratutiy 56.66 61.44 54.40

(a) Provision for Leave Encashment 28.20 23.04 23.04

84.86 84.48 77.44

As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017 As At  Apri l 01, 2016

NOTE NO : 15
Other non-current liabi li t ies :

Non-Current Non-Current Non-Current
Portion Portion  Portion

(a) Deferred sales tax Liability 67.89 90.52 113.15

67.89 90.52 113.15

Unsecured Borrowings:
(a) Deferred sales tax l iabi l i ty :
Deferred sales tax liability is interest free and payable in  six equal annual installments of ` 22.63 lacs each payable from 1st May,
2016

As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017 As At  Apri l 01, 2016

NOTE NO : 16
Trade payables : ( refer note no.47)
Total outstanding dues other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 2362.52 2880.09 2054.00

2362.52 2880.09 2054.00

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March 2018  (Amount ` in Lacs)
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As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017 As At  Apri l 01, 2016
NOTE NO : 17
Other f inancial liabi li t ies :
(a) Current maturities of long-term debt; 744.69 334.35 1088.81

(b) Intercorporate Loans 13.91 1052.76 186.84

(c) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings; 0.00 7222.27 7222.27

758.60 8609.38 8497.92

As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017 As At  Apri l 01, 2016
NOTE NO : 18
Other Current Liabili tes :
Advance from customers 146.64 187.50 133.75

Duties and taxes 5427.91 4220.10 2383.58

Deferred sales tax Liability 45.26 22.63 0.00

5619.81 4430.23 2517.33

As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017 As At  Apri l 01, 2016
NOTE NO : 19
Provisions
Provision for employee benefits 66.98 63.29 70.92

Provision for Gratutiy 10.57 10.27 10.71

77.55 73.54 81.63

As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017
NOTE NO : 20
I . Revenue from operations

A. Sale of Products
Direct Export Turnover 5997.35 1859.90

Domestic Turnover

Manufacturing 42973.93 37823.02

Trading 1737.64 44711.57 0.00 37823.02

Gross Turnover 50708.92 39682.92

B. Other Revenue from operations 156.51 20.01
Total Revenue from operations 50865.43 39702.93

Detai ls of  product  sold As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017
Sponge Iron 32854.92 23355.91

Ferro Alloys (Including Trading sales of Rs 1737.64 lacs (P.Y Rs Nil) 10012.30 12262.17

Others 3424.38 78.43

Power 3932.74 3986.41

Cement 484.58 0.00

Total 50708.92 39682.92
*Figures including GST

Other operat ing revenue as under As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017
Duty Drawback 156.51 21.21

Total 156.51 21.21

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March 2018  (Amount ` in Lacs)
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As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017
NOTE NO : 21
Other Income :
other Interest (TDS Rs 38923)(p.y Rs.53305/ -) 4.92 4.16
Rent Income  (TDS Rs 19200/ -)(p.y 19200/ - ) 9.60 9.60
Miscellaneous receipts 0.00 1.20
Foreign exchange fluctuation Gain (Net) 196.38 124.15

Sundry balances written back(Net) 60.48 97.86

271.38 236.97

As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017
NOTE NO : 22
Cost of Materials Consumed:
Raw Material Consumed:
Opening Stock of Raw Material 3877.30 945.35

Add : Purchases 33218.62 26961.93

37095.92 27907.28
Less : Closing Stock of Raw Material 3200.25 3877.30

33895.67 24029.98

2017-18 2016-17
QTY Value QTY Value

[MT] (Amount [MT] (Amount
Class of  Goods ` in lacs) ` in lacs)
I ron Ore /  Fines /  Pallates 2,59,671.000 13,819.54 2,35,842.48 13,825.92

Steam Coal 1,37,109.974 7,969.56 1,25,662.78 5,916.42

Chrome Ore 27,167.65 4,761.71 28,639.80 3,509.29

Others 7,344.86 778.35

TOTAL :- 33,895.67 24,029.98

As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017
NOTE NO : 23
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade (Ferro alloys ) 1210.23 0.00

Total 1210.23 0.00

As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017
NOTE NO : 24
Changes in Inventories of Finished goods, Stock-in-Trade and
Work-in-progress
Opening Stock

Finished Goods 1102.95 898.26
Stock-in-Progress 89.41 19.62

1192.36 917.89
Less : Closing Stock

Finished Goods 2974.93 1102.95
Stock-in-Progress 507.69 89.41

3482.62 1192.36
Increase/ (Decrease) in Stock of Finished Goods & Stock-in-Progress -2290.26 -274.48

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March 2018  (Amount ` in Lacs)
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Class of  Goods          Opening Stock                        Closing Stock

As at  01.04.2016 As at  01.04.2017 As at  31.03.2017 As at  31-03-2018

QTY Value QTY Value QTY Value QTY Value
[MT] (` in lacs) [MT] (` in lacs) [MT] (` in lacs) [MT] (` in lacs)

FINISHED GOODS, WASTE
PRODUCTS & BY-PRODUCTS:

Sponge I ron 2,486.21 337.52 2,806.92 441.32 2,486.21 337.52 1193.077 203.33

Ferro Chrome 794.084 412.46 708.254 640.13 794.084 412.46 413.191 325.82

Trading 0 0 0 0 0 0 7206.4 2409.39

Others 148.29 21.5 148.29 36.39

TOTAL: 898.27 1,102.95 898.27 2974.93

Product 2017-18 2016-17
(Amount ` in lacs) (Amount ` in lacs)

Sponge Iron 25.90 26.76
Ferro Alloys 481.78 62.65
TOTAL 507.68 89.41

As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017
NOTE NO : 25
Excise duty
Excise duty on Sales 963.00 3641.77

963.00 3641.77

As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017
NOTE NO : 26
Employee benefi ts expenses
Salary & Bonus 1258.75 1175.06

Contribution to Provident Fund etc. 66.65 62.36

Staff welfare expenses 73.89 41.01

1399.29 1278.43

As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017
NOTE NO : 27
Finance Costs
Interest to Others 115.70 73.06

115.70 73.06

As At  March 31, 2018 As At  March 31, 2017
NOTE NO : 28
Other Expenses
Stores & Spares Consumed :

Opening Stock 927.96 1055.26

Add : Purchases 1652.34 1064.72

2580.30 2119.98
Less: Closing Stock 827.84 1752.46 927.96 1192.02

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March 2018  (Amount ` in Lacs)
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Power & fuel (Including cost of power generation) 5266.39 4849.63

Repairs & Maintenance :

Machinery 51.31 39.94

Building 10.61 1.64

Others 39.48 101.40 81.96 123.54

Labour charges 780.02 546.41

Freight outward 1156.47 643.10

Audit Fees* 8.00 5.50

Bad Debts 0.00 0.04

Sales Commision 17.88 19.85

General/  Miscellaneous Expenses 495.36 819.94

Insurance Expenses 12.59 6.74

Legal & Professional Charges 105.65 188.02

Service tax 9.94 13.10

Rent,Rate and Taxes 5466.40 1639.00

Excise duty adjustment for stock -122.15 22.73

15050.41 10069.62

Part iculars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

 Rupees Rupees
(i) Payments to the auditors comprises

(Net of service tax input credit, where applicable):

As auditors - Statutory Audit / Tax Audit 8.00 5.50

- Taxat ion Matters  -  -

- Management services  -  -

 - Company Law Matters  -

- Certificat ion Fees & Other Services  -  -

- Reimbursement of Expenses  -  -

Total 8.00  5.50

Part iculars Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

NOTE NO : 29
Earnings Per Share :
Basic/ Di luted Earnings per Share
Number of Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 849.67 849.67

Number of Equity Shares alloted during the year

Number of Equity Shares at the end of the year 849.67 849.67

Weighted average number of equity shares

Profit for the year (after tax,available for equity shareholders)   In ` 4239.06 87.68

Basic and Di luted Earnings Per Share  ` 4.99 0.10

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March 2018  (Amount ` in Lacs)
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Note : 30 Contingent  liabi l i t ies and commitments
( to the extent not  provided for) : 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

(A) Contingent  liabi li t ies:
Disputed Excise Demand (Matter Under appeal) 1,682.24  1,762.34

Disputed Custom duty demand (Matter Under appeal)  50.00  241.79

Disputed Custom duty service tax demand (Matter Under appeal)  25.55  25.36

Disputed Value added Tax   demand (Matter Under appeal)  839.46  544.35

Claims not acknowledge as debt against the company

Banks /  Financial institutions -  7,273.37

Others 3,403.15  5,317.40

It is not practical for the company to estimate the timing of cash outflows,
if any, in respect of the above pending resolution of the respective
proceedings as it is determinable only on receipt of judgments/ decisions
pending with various forums/ authorit ies.

The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and
has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as
contingent liabilit ies applicable, in its financial statements. The company
does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have materially
adverse impact on its financial results.

( i i ) Guarantees:
Bank guarantee given 0.00 21.27

(B) Commitment:
Estimated amount of contracts, remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for Rs.492.78 lac net of advance
(Previous Year: ` 492.78 lac ).

Commercial Tax Department has challenged by way of Tax Appeal before Supreme Court, the order of Gujarat High Court wherein
Judgment of Joint Commissioner of Commercial Tax (Legal) was quashed and decided that non cooking coal used in the
manufacturing process for Sponge I ron as raw material and eligible for ITC under Section 11 (3)(b). The result  of the appeal will
decide whether company has to claim amount of ITC or refund ITC already taken. However, amount of contingent liability cannot be
ascertained.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March 2018  (Amount ` in Lacs)

31. The Company's current  l iabi l i t ies exceeded i ts current  assets as at  the previous year balance sheet  date. These condi t ions
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast signi f icant doubt about the Company's abi li ty to cont inue as a
going concern. However, considering the prof it  earned by the company for the year ended on 31st March 2018 and considering
the view of the management , the f inancial results of the Company have been prepared on a " going concern basis" .

32. SEGMENT REPORTING:
The Company i s manufacturing Ferro Alloys & Sponge I ron, which i s basical ly used in I ron & Steel Industry. Further power
generated in the company in i ts power plant is used for capt ive as well as trading purpose. In view of this, the company has
to consider " I ron & Steel"  and " Power"  as Primary Reportable business segment , as per Indian Account ing Standard - 108
'Operat ing Segments'.Report ing. However, due to substant ial competi t ion, risk, on-going posi t ion of Company and largely in
the interest of the Company as well as interest of the stake holders involved, therefore, management has not made disclosure
of  Primary Reportable segment as per Indian Accounting Standard - 108 'Operat ing Segments'.

33 Financial and derivat ive instruments
- Capital Management

The company's objective when managing capital is to:

- Safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that the Company is able to provide maximum return to stakeholders
and benefits for other stakeholders.

- Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The company's Board of director's reviews the capital structure on regular basis. As part of this review the board considers the
cost of capital risk associated with each class of capital requirements and maintenance of adequate liquidity.

Disclosures
This sect ion gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides addit ional information on
balance sheet items that contain financial instruments.
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The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which
income and expenses are recognized in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed
in Note (A) j, k, l and m.

( i) Categories of Financial Instruments

Part iculars As at  31st March, 2018 As at  31st March, 2017 As at  1st Apri l , 2016
Financial Assets
Measured at Amort ised Cost
(i) Trade and Other Receivables 3737.64 5380.53 4038.42

(i i) Cash and Cash Eqivalents 241.86 123.67 111.23

(iii) Loans 12.63 12.34 7.5

(iv) Other Financial Assets 1357.85 1672.53 1497.88

Financial Liabi l i t ies
Measured at Amort ised Cost
(i) Borrowings 17451.5 16895.77 16141.49

(ii) Trade Payables 2864.79 3199.84 2385.34

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 80.59 8653.43 8541.97

( i i ) Fai r Value Measurement
This note provides information about how the Company determines fair values of various financial assets.

Fair Value of financial assets and liabili t ies that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required).

Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilit ies recognized in the financial statements
approximate their fair values.

( i i i )  Financial Risk Management Object ives
While ensuring liquidity is sufficient to meet Company's operational requirements, the Company's financial management committee
also monitors and manages key financial risks relat ing to the operat ions of the Company by analyzing exposures by degree and
magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including currency risk and price risk), credit  risk and liquidity risk.

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: in-terest rate, currency risk and other price risk, such as commodity price risk and
equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include FVTPL investments, trade payables, trade receivables, etc.

Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's
operating activit ies. The Company has a treasury department which monitors the foreign exchange fluctuations on the continuous
basis and advises the management of any material adverse effect on the Company.

Interest Rate Risk
The Company's interest rate risk arises from the Long Term Borrowings with fixed rates. The Company's fixed rates borrowings are
carried at amortised cost.

Liquidi ty Risk
The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents including bank deposits and availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilit ies to meet the obligations when due.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. In
addition, liquidity management also involves projecting cash flows considering level of liquid assets necessary to meet obligations
by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets & liabilit ies and monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios.

The following tables detail the Company's remaining contractual maturity for i ts non-derivat ive financial liabilit ies with agreed
repayment periods. The information included in the tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest
date on which the Company may be required to pay.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March 2018  (Amount ` in Lacs)



ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018 61

S.A.L. STEEL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March 2018  (Amount ` in Lacs)

The following are the contractual maturit ies of non-derivat ive financial liabilit ies, based on contractual cash flows:

Part iculars Due in 1 Year 1 Year - 3 Years More than 3 Years Total
As at  31st  March, 2018
Borrowings 722.06 2166.18 14563.26 16729.44

Trade Payables 2362.52 2362.52

Other Financial Liabilities 758.6 546.32 1304.92

Total 2399.06 502.27 17495.55 20396.88
As at  31st  March, 2017
Borrowings 16895.77 16895.77

Trade Payables 2880.09 319.75 3199.84

Other Financial Liabilities 8609.38 363.80 8973.18

Total 11489.47 319.75 16939.82 28749.04
As at  1st  Apri l , 2016
Borrowings 16141.49 16141.49

Trade Payables 2054.00 2054.00

Other Financial Liabilities 8497.92 375.40 8873.31

Total 10551.92 331.34 16185.54 27068.8

Credit  Risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instru-ment or customer contract, leading to
a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activit ies (primari ly trade receivables).

Trade Receivables
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for all the customers. In addition, a large number
of minor receivables are grouped into homoge-nous groups and assessed for impairment collect ively. The maximum exposure to
credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of trade receivables disclosed in Note 3and 7, as the Company does not hold
collateral as security. The Company has evaluated the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers
are located in several jurisdictions and industries.

The Company has a detailed review mechanism of overdue customer receivables at vari-ous levels within organisat ion to ensure
proper attention and focus for realisation.

Part iculars Upto 1 Year  1 Year - 3 Years  More Than 3 Years  Total
As at  31st  March,2018
Loans to Employees 12.63 12.63

Trade Receivables 3469.63 268.01 3737.64

Other Financial Assets

Total 3482.26 268.01 3750.27
As at  31st  March,2017
Loans to Employees 12.34 12.34

Trade Receivables 5029.03 351.50 5380.53

Other Financial Assets

Total 8523.63 619.51 5392.87

34.Disclosures Regarding Employee Benefi ts
As per Indian Accounting Standard 19 "Employee Benefits" the disclosures are given below:

Defined Contribution Plan

Contribut ion to defined contribution plan, recognized as expense for the year is as under:

Partculars 2017-18 2016-17
Employers contribution to provident fund 43.33 55.25
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(i) Defined Contribution Plan: Employee benefits in the form of Provident Fund are considered as defined contribution plan and
the contributions to Employees Provident Fund Organization established under The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous
Provisions Act 1952 and Employees State Insurance Act, 1948, respectively, are charged to the profit  and loss account of the
year when the contributions to the respective funds are due.

(ii) Defined Benefit Plan: Retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity are considered as defined benefit obligation and are provided
for on the basis of third party actuarial valuation, using the projected unit credit method, as at the date of the Balance Sheet.
Every Employee who has completed five years or more of service is entit led to Gratuity on terms not less favorable than the
provisions of The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.
As the Company has not funded its liability, it has nothing to disclose regarding plan assets and its reconciliation.

(iii) Major risk to the plan
I  have outlined the following risks associated with the plan:
A. Actuarial Risk:
I t  is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following reasons:
Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the as-sumed salary escalation will result into an increase
in Obligat ion at a rate that is higher than expected.
Variability in mortality rates: I f actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mor-tality rate assumption than the Gratuity
Benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of
cashflow will lead to an actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and discount rate.
Variability in withdrawal rates: I f actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption than the
Gratuity Benefits will be paid earlier than ex-pected. The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at
the resignation date.
B. Investment  Risk:
For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of as-sets certified by the insurer may not be the
fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, the present value of the assets is independent of the future
discount rate. This can result in wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in
the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.
C. Liquidi ty Risk:
Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits. I f some
of such employees resign/ ret ire from the company there can be strain on the cashflows.
D. Market  Risk:
Market risk is a collect ive term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctu-at ions of the financial markets. One
actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An
increase in discount rate leads to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption
depends on the yields on the corpo-rate/ government bonds and hence the valuation of liability is exposed to fluctua-tions in
the yields as at the valuation date.
E. Legislat i ve Risk:
Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilit ies or reduction in the plan assets due to change in the legislation/
regulation. The government may amend the Payment of Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to
the employees. This will direct ly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit  Obligation and the same will have to be
recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

( iv) Defined Benefi t  Cost

Part iculars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

  ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs
Current Service Cost 17.75 16.75

Interest Expense on Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) 4.76 4.75

Def ined Benefi t  Cost included in Prof i t  and Loss - -
Remeasurements - Due to Financial Assumptions -2.19 3.95

Remeasurements - Due to Experience Assumptions - -

Remeasurements - Due to Experience Adjustments -22.33 -11.06

Defined Benefi t  Cost included in Other Comprehensive Income -24.52 -7.11
Total Def ined Benef i t  Cost in Prof i t  and Loss and OCI -1.20 14.39
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(v) Movement  in Def ined benefi t  liabi l i ty:

Part iculars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

 Rupees Rupees
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 71.71 65.11

Interest Expense on Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) - -

Current Service Cost 17.75 16.75

Total Remeasurements included in OCI

Less: Benefits paid 3.28 7.78

Less: Contribut ions to plan assets

Closing benef i t  obligat ion 67.23 71.71
Current Liabilit ies of Closing benefit obligation 10.57 10.27

Non-Current Liabilities of Closing benefit obligation 56.66 61.44

(vi) Sensi t ivi ty Analysis of  Def ined Benefi t  Obligat ion:

Part iculars 2017-18 2017-18
(A) Discount rate Sensit ivi ty
Increase by 0.5% 64.94 68.70

(% change) -3.40% -4.19%

Decrease by 0.5% 69.67 73.93

(% change) 3.64% 3.09%

(B) Salary growth rate Sensi t ivi ty
Increase by 0.5% 69.64 73.88

(% change) 3.58 3.02%

Decrease by 0.5% 64.98 68.74

(% change) 3.35% -4.15%

(C) Wi thdrawal rate (W.R.)  Sensi t ivi ty
W.R. x 110% 67.21 71.15

(% change) -0.02% -0.78

W.R. x 90% 67.20 71.26

(% change) 0.04% -0.63

(vi i ) Actuarial  assumpt ions:
Part iculars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
 Rupees Rupees

Mortality Table : Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) Table

Discount Rate (per annum) 7.60% 7.15%

Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) 6.00% 6.00%

Withdrawal rate 15% at younger ages 15% at younger ages
reducing to 3% at reducing to 3% at

older ages  older ages

(vi i i ) The above detai ls are cert i f ied by the actuary.
35. Management is of the view that  they do not ant icipate execut ion of i ts ongoing capital projects.  However,  the  Company

has  not   made  ad-equate  provision towards recovery  of  advances for the said capi tal projects for the amount  of  Rs.
912.32/ - which  are  current ly  shown under Other Non Current  assets as Advance for capi tal Goods for the supply of
customized equipments based of  our speci f ic design and requi rements . The machines are manufactured and ready for
dispatch but company does not have further fund to pay balance amount and to li f t the machines.However the management
is t rying to recover such advances f rom the suppl iers ful ly subject  to provision of  Rs 2.37 lacs made in the books of

 (Amount ` in Lacs)
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accounts.
36. The Company has not assessed the impact of Effective Interest Method to the finance cost as per the requirement of lnd AS 109

'Financial Instruments and hence, the effect of the same, if    any, on the financial results is not ident if iable.
37. The Company's current liabi li t ies exceeded i ts current assets as at the previous year balance sheet date. These condit ions

indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast signif icant doubt about the Company's abili ty to continue as a
going concern. However, considering the profit earned by the company for the year ended on 31st March 2018 and considering
the view of the management, the financial results of the Company have been prepared on a " going concern basis" .

38. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES:
(a) List  of Related Part ies and Relat ionships:
i . Concern where signi f icant interest exists.
Name of  the Concern Nature of Relat ionship
Shah Alloys Limited Promoter Group Company

SAL Care Private Limited Promoter Group Company

SAL Corporation Pvt Ltd Promoter Group Company

i i . Key Management  Personnel
Name of  the Key Management Personnel Nature of Relat ionship
Shri Rajendra V Shah Chairman

Shri Sujal A Shah Executive Director

Shri B M Singhal Whole Time Director Cum CFO

Shri Anil Pandya Whole Time Director

Shri Ambalal C Patel Independent Director

Shri Tejpal S Shah Independent Director

Shri Harshad M Shah Independent Director

Shri Jethalal M Shah Independent Director

Shri Shrikant N Zaveri Independent Director

Smt Shefali M Patel Independent Director

Shri Jayant J Garai CEO

Shri Nirajkumar Jain Company Secretary

(Related Parties have been identified by the Management)

(b) Disclosure of Related Party Transact ions             (Amount ` in Lacs)

Sr No. Related Party Nature of Transac-t ion 2017-18 2016-17
1. Shah Alloys Limited Purchases 5176.32 194.71

Sales (Incl Power) 21086.43 17043.96

Rent Income 9.60 9.60

Balance as at the year end 2560.86 4900.28

2. SAL Corporation Pvt Ltd Loan repaid 108.94 0.00

Interest 0.49 8.97

Balance as at the year end 929.91 108.94

3. SAL Care Pvt Ltd Loan taken 412.79 0.00

Loan repaid 1286.16 35.88

Interest 56.54 00.00

Balance as at the year end 0.00                929.91

Key Management Personnel
4. Mr. Sujal Shah Salary 4.32 4.32

5. Mr. B.M Singhal Salary 4.92 4.92

6. Mr.  Anil Pandya Salary 4.80 4.80

7. Mr. Jayant Garai Salary 28.00 0.00

8. Mr. Nirajkumar Jain Salary 4.20 3.60
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39. Certain Balance of Debtors, Creditors, Loans & Advances for Capital expenditures are non- moving /  sticky since last 3 years.
However in view of the management, the same is recoverable /  payable. Hence no provision for the same is made in the books
of accounts.

40. The company wi th ef fect  f rom 22nd February 2018 for the ent i re dues in re-spect  of  various faci l i t ies and assistance
provided by Union bank of In-dia,State Bank of Saurashtra, State Bank of India and State Bank of Hyderabad which is now
assigned to Invent Assets Securi t izat ion & Reconstruct ion Pvt. Ltd. The company has accounted for the Waiver of  Interest
port ion (as per the books of the company) as Income in the statement of Prof i t and loss.The said agreements provides for
the settlement of ent ire dues in respect of f inancial assistance and facili t ies with the underlying Securit ies for the payment
of Rs 18051.50 lacs towards full and f inal set t lement against the total liabi li ty (Principal and Interest)  of Rs 24430 lacs
result ing in to the waiver of  l i abi l i ty (Principal and Interest  as per the books of  the company  )  f or the amount  of  Rs
6378.26 lacs. The said waiver of  l i abi l i ty ( Interest )  for the amount  of  Rs 6378.26 has been shown as income in the
Statement of Profit  and loss and has been reflected  as an Except ional I tem in the Statement of Prof i t and loss for the year
ended on 31st  March 2018.

41. The balance conf irmation from the suppliers, customers as well as to vari-ous loans or advances given have been called for,
but  the same are awai ted t i l l  the date of  audi t . Thus, the balances of  receivables, t rade payables as well as loans and
advances have been taken as per the books of accounts submitted by the company and are subject to   conf i rmation from
the respect ive part ies

 42. Vide the Order of Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) , Ah-medabad Bench dated 6th Sep  2017 [ C P ( IB)  no.
94/ 9/ NCLT/ AHM/ 2017]   which  had  admitted  the company under  Corporate  Insolvency  Resolut ion  Process (CIRP) under
sect ion 9(5)( i )  of   the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and accordingly appointed Interim Resolut ion Professional
( IRP).However, on the basis of the records produced before us, and as explained to us,the promoters of the company have
entered in to a settlement with operat ional creditor who had fi led application before Hon'ble NCLT,Ahmedabad and obtained
no object ion from other operat ional credi-tors as well as f inancial credi tors and moved a pet it ion under Art icle 142 of the
const i tut ion before the Hon'ble Supreme Court  of  India, New Delhi . As per the order dated 10th January 2018 of  the
Hon'ble Supreme court of India, the order passed by the Hon'ble NCLT, Ahmedabad dated 06th September,2017 has been
set aside and accordingly the CIRP proceedings have been effectively discontinued and powers of the Board of Directors of
the Company have been reinstated.

43. The company against whom an application for Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) has been admitted under the
Insolvency & Bank-ruptcy Code 2016 vide order of the National Company Law Tribunal Ahmed-abad dated 06th
Septemeber,2017 [CP(IB) No.94/ 9/ NCLT/ AHM/ 2017]  u/ s 9 of the IBC 2016 and in  line with the press release of the CBDT
dated 06th Janudary,2018, while computing the liabili ty of MAT u/ s 115JB of the Income Tax Act the amount of total loss
brought forward (including unabsorbed de-preciation) has been allowed to be reduced from the book profit for the year under
review.

44. In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the current assets, loans and advances are approximately of the value stated, i f
realized in the ordinary course of business and the provisions for depreciation and all known and ascertained liabili t ies are
adequate and not in excess of the amounts reasonably necessary.

45. Inventories are as taken, valued and certified by the management.

46. Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabi li ty)
The breakup of Deferred Tax as at 31.03.2018 is as under.  (Amount ` in Lacs)

Part iculars As at  31st March, 2018 As at  31st March, 2017
Deferred Tax Liabi li t ies.

- Timing Difference of Depreciation (Deferred tax liability) 2,597.32 2,310.06

Deferred Tax Assets.
- Gratuity & other Payment (Deferred Tax Liability) 60.25 2,283.61

- Unabsorbed Loses 963.86 618.76

Net Deferred Tax Liabi l i ty/ (Assets) 1,573.21 (592.31)

47. The Company has not received information from the Suppliers regarding their status under The Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006. Hence, disclosures, if any relating to amounts unpaid as at the balance sheet date together with interest
paid or payable as per the requirement under the said Act, have not been made. However, on prima facie scrutiny, no interest has
been paid to suppliers.

48. Earning in Foreign Exchange             (Amount ` in Lacs)

Sr No. Part iculars 2017-18 2016-17
i) FOB Value of exports 6469.11 1952.45
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49.   Value of imports calculated on C.I .F. basis during the f inancial year

2017-18 2016-17
(Amount ` in lacs)  (Amount ` in lacs)

Raw Materials 16,699.02 9072.14

50. Value of  Raw Materials, Stores, and Chemical & Spares consumed during the year:

(Amount ` in lacs) % of Total Consumpt ion
2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17

Raw Materials:
i) Imported 20,111.37 9,072.14 37.75 37.75

ii) Indigenous 13,784.30 14,957.84 62.25 62.25

Total 33,895.67 24,029.98 100.00 100.00
Stores, Spares & Chemical:
i)Imported 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

ii) Indigenous 1752.46 1192.02 100.00 100.00

Total 1,752.46 1,192.02 100.00 100.00
51. The Company has re-classified previous year figures to conform to this year's classification. Previous year figures have been

re-grouped /  rearranged, wherever necessary to make them comparable with those of current year.

52. A) Effects of Ind AS adoption on Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017 and 1st Apri l, 2016

                         As At  March 31, 2017                        As At  Apri l 01, 2016
Part iculars                          (End of last period                            (Date of Transi t ion)

                           presented as per IGAAP)
Note As per Adjustments As per Ind AS As per Adjustments As per
No. IGAAP* on IGAAP* on Ind AS

transition to  transition to
Ind AS Ind AS

ASSETS
Non- current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 2  13,274.24  13,274.24  13,974.61  (0.00)  13,974.61

Capital work-in-progress  2,470.25  0.00  2,470.25  2,470.25  0.00  2,470.25

Other Intangible assets  5.77  -  5.77  5.77  -  5.77

Financial Assets

(i) Investments  -  -

(ii) Trade receivables  -  351.50  351.50  -  278.81  278.81

(iii) Loans 4  -  12.34  12.34  -  7.50  7.50

(iii) Others 5  674.48  (82.18)  592.30  771.90  92.20  864.10

Other non-current assets 5  167.37  821.35  988.71  166.97  976.18  1,143.15

Current assets

Inventories 6,020.33  -  6,020.33  2,920.14  2,920.14

Financial Assets  -  -

(i) Investments  -  -  -  -  -

(ii) Trade receivables  5,380.53  (351.50)  5,029.03  4,038.42  (278.81)  3,759.61

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 8  123.67  (0.00)  123.67  111.23  -  111.23

(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above  -  -  -  -  -  -

(v) Loans  843.01  (843.01)  -  566.52  (566.52)  -

Other current assets 9  683.81  683.81  354.73  354.73

Total Assets 28,959.65  29,551.95  25,025.81  25,889.90

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March 2018  (Amount ` in Lacs)
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EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

(a) Equity Share capital  8,496.67  -  8,496.67  8,496.67  -  8,496.67

(b) Other Equity Equity
Reco  (11,317.12)  (1,055.40)  (12,372.52)  (12,006.37)  (458.75)  (12,465.12)

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 12  90.52  16,805.24  16,895.77  424.92  15,716.57  16,141.49
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities  44.05  -  44.05  44.05  -  44.05
Provisions 84.48  0.00  84.48  77.43  0.01  77.44
Deferred tax liabilities (Net)  -  -
Other non-current liabilities 15  -  410.27  410.27  -  444.50  444.50
Deferred Revenue  -  -
Current liabilit ies
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 7,982.48  (7,982.48)  7,116.57  (7,116.57)  -
(ii) Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises  -  -
Total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises  3,147.57  (267.48)  2,880.09  2,307.33  (253.33)  2,054.00
(iii) Other financial liabilities 17  -  8,609.38  8,609.38  -  8,497.92  8,497.92
Other current liabilities 18  20,357.45  (15,927.23)  4,430.21  18,483.58  (15,966.25)  2,517.33
Provisions 19  73.54  0.00  73.54  81.63  0.00  81.63
Current Tax Liabilities (Net)  -  -  -  -  -
Total Equity and Liabi li t ies  28,959.64  29,551.94  25,025.81  25,889.91

A) EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Part iculars
For the year ended 31st March, 2018

Balance as at 1st Apri l 2017 8496.67

Changes in equity share capital during the year 0

Issued during the year 0

Balance as at 31st March 2018 8496.67

For the year ended 31st March, 2017

Balance as at 1st Apri l 2016 8496.67

Changes in equity share capital during the year - 0

Balance as at 31st March 2017 8497.67

B )  OTHER EQUITY
Reconci l iat ion of  Other Equi ty as at  1st  Apri l  2016

Part iculars General Securi t ies Capi tal Retained Other Total
Reserve Premium Reserve Earnings Comprehensive

Reserve  Income
Balance at the beginning of the
reporting period  5.11  2,878.20  800.00  (12,838.59)  -  (9,155.27)

Adjustments as per Ind AS  -  -  -  (433.00)  -  (433.00)

Profit for the year  -  -  -  (2,876.85)  -  (2,876.85)

Balance at the end of the
reporting period  5.11  2,878.20  800.00  (16,148.43)  -  (12,465.12)
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 (Amount ` in Lacs)
Reconci l iat ion of Other Equity as at  31st  March 2017
Part iculars General Securi t ies Capi tal Retained Other Total

Reserve Premium Reserve Earnings Comprehensive
Reserve  Income

Balance at the beginning of the
reporting period  5.11  2,878.20  800.00  (16,148.43)  -  (12,465.12)

Dividend on Equity Shares  -  -  -  -  -  -

Tax on Dividend  -  -  -  -  -  -

Adjustments as per Ind AS  -  -  -  -  4.91  4.91

Profit for the year  -  -  -  87.68  -  87.68

Balance at the end of the
reporting period  5.11  2,878.20  800.00  (16,060.74)  4.91 (12,372.52)

Notes to f i rst  t ime adoption
a Property Plant and Equipment

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment
as at 1st April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant
and equipment .

b Re-Classi f icat ion
Assets /  liabilities which do not meet the definition of financial asset /  financial liability have been reclassified to other asset
/  liability.

c Prior Period I tems
This company has recorded a prior period error in the FY 2016-17 pertaining to the year FY 2015-16. Hence the same is
adjusted in the opening reserves of the Balance Sheet as at 1-4-2016. Moreover, the prior period error with respect to the FY
2016-17, which was to be recorded in FY 2017-18, has been adjusted under the head Other Admin Expenses in the Statement
of Profit  or Loss.

d Excise Duty
Under the previous GAAP, revenue from sale of products was presented exclusive of excise duty. Under Ind AS, revenue from
sale of goods is presented inclusive of excise duty. The excise duty paid is presented on the face of statement of profit and
loss as part of expenses

e Deferred Tax

As per Ind AS 12, Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the reporting date.
On transit ion date, certain adjustments were made by charge/  credit  to profit  and loss account. The tax effect of such
adjustments resulting into deferred tax asset of Rs. 864.10 lacs has been recognised by credit to retained earnings. This is
on account of the fact that upto this period, deferred tax asset on unabsorbed depreciation and brought forward losses were
not recognized since as per the considerat ion of “Prudence” under AS 22 as well as Ind AS 12, the same is not permitted.
Now, as per the management contention, there is a reasonable and virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income shall
be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. The virtual certainty has been established on the basis
of speedy reduction of current losses

f Actuarial gain/ (loss) on Defined Benefit plans for Employee Benefits:

Under Ind AS, the change in defined benefit liability is split into changes arising out of service and interest cost and changes
arising out of remeasurements. Changes due to“service and interest cost are to be recognised in Profit and Loss account and
the changes arising out of re-measurements are to be recognised direct ly in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI ).

NOTE NO -46  TAX RECONCLIATION
Income taxes recognised in Statement of Prof i t  and Loss
Part iculars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Current tax

In respect of the current year -  -

(Excess)/ Short provision for tax of earlier years -  -

 -  -

Deferred tax(credi t )  / Charged  2,156.95  269.60

Total income tax expense recognised in respect of  continuing operations  2,156.95  269.60
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Tax reconci l iat ion
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit  as follows:

Part iculars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

Profit before taxes  -  -

Enacted tax rate in India 34.940% 30.900%

Expected income tax benefit/ (expense) at statutory tax rate  -  -

 Ef fect of : -

Deferred tax(credi t )  / Charged  2,157  270

Income taxes recognised in the Statement of  Prof i t  and Loss  2,156.95  269.60
The tax rate used for the 2017-18 and 2016-17 reconciliations above is the corporate tax rate of 30% plus surcharge @ 12% and cess
@ 3% payable by corporate entit ies in India on taxable profits under the Indian tax laws.

Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
Part iculars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
Deferred tax
Arising on income and expenses recognised in other comprehensive income:

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation (8.57)  (2.20)

Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income  (8.57)  (2.20)
Bifurcation of the income tax recognised in other comprehensive income into:-

I tems that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss  (8.57)  (2.20)

Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income  (8.57)  (2.20)
Note: Deferred tax liability has been calculated using effective tax rate of 34.94%

Components of  deferred tax assets and l iabi l i t ies
Part iculars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017
De(a)  Deferred tax l iabi l i t ies
Difference between book and tax depreciation 2,597.32  2,310.06

 2,597.32  2,310.06
(b)  Deferred tax assets
Disallowances of employee benefits u/ s. 43B of the Income Tax  60.25  2,283.61

Unabsorbed loss 963.86  618.76

1,024.11  2,902.37
Deferred Tax Liabi li t ies (Net)  1,573.21  (592.31)

 (Amount ` in Lacs)
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 (Amount ` in Lacs)

The accompanying Notes 1 to 53 are integral part of these Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date attached.

For Parikh & Majmudar
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn.No.107525W)

CA Dr. Hiten Parikh
Partner
Membership No.040230
PLACE :  AHMEDABAD
DATE   :  30th May,2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rajendra V. Shah Chairman

B M Singhal Whole Time Director Cum CFO

Anil Pandya Whole Time Director

Nirajkumar Jain Company Secretary

NOTE NO -53 RECONCILAITON OF PROFIT AND LOSS
RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.3.2017 AS PER GAAP 689.25

ADJUSTMENTS AS PER IND AS

Posit ive Adjustments
Exice duty 3641.77

Reclassification of Acturial Loss  on Defined benefit 7.11

plans to Other Comprehensive income

Negat ive adjustments
Prior period expenditure 324.86

Reclassification of Acturial Loss  on Defined benefit 7.11

plans to Other Comprehensive income

Exice duty 3641.8

Tax Impact of Indas Adjustment 2.20

Deffered Tax impact of INDAS 269.60

4,245.53

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.3.2017 AS PER IND AS  92.60
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S.A.L. STEEL LIMITED
CIN: L29199GJ2003PLC043148

5/ 1 Shreeji House, B/ h M.J. Library, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad: 380 006

ATTENDANCE SLIP

NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE SHAREHOLDER

I hereby record my presence at the 15TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company held on Saturday, 29th September, 2018 at 10:00
A.M. at SAL Institute & Engineering Research, Opp. Science City, Ahmedabad - 380 060.

Signature of the Shareholder | Proxy
*  Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.

and whose signature(s) are appended below as my /  our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/ us and on my/ our behalf at the
15th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company, to be held on Saturday, 29th September, 2018 at 10:00 A.M. at SAL Institute &
Engineering Research, Opp. Science City, Ahmedabad - 380060 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are
indicated below:

S.A.L. STEEL LIMITED
CIN: L29199GJ2003PLC043148

5/ 1 Shreeji House, B/ h M.J. Library, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad: 380 006
Form No. MGT- 11

PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of Members : 

Registered Address : 

E-mail Address : 

Folio No. | Client ID : 

DP Id : 

I / we, being the member(s) of  shares of S.A.L. Steel Ltd, hereby appoint:

1)  of 

having e-mail id  or failing him

2)  of 

having e-mail id  or failing him

3)  of 

having e-mail id  or failing him

Affix
Revenue
Stamp

Signed this  day of 2018

Signature of first proxy holder Signature of Second proxy holder Signature of Third proxy holder

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not
less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

DP ID* Folio

Client ID* No. of Shares

S.NO Resolutions
1 Adoption of financial statements for the year ended on March 31, 2018.
2 Reappointment of Shri Anil Pandya as Director who retire by rotation.
3 Approval of Related party transactions for the financial year 2018-19.
4 Fixation of Remuneration of Cost Auditors.
5 Approval for continuation of directorship of Shri J M Shah.
6 Approval for continuation of directorship of Shri Shrikant Jhaveri.
7 Approval for continuation of directorship of Shri A C Patel.
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Route map to reach venue of the Annual General Meeting
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